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Our Purpose,_
Vision and Values

Founded by a group of doctors in London in 1892 to ‘support and
safeguard the character of legally qualified practitioners and to
advise and defend members’.

Recognising that strength in numbers could be mutually beneficial,
they started The Medical Protection Society (MPS).

For over 130 years our fundamental purpose has not changed.

Our Purpose
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Our Values

Being Member First, Ambitious, Determined and Empowered
(MADE), together with our Purpose and our Vision, guide our
thinking, our actions and our decisions.

Member First

We passionately care about our members.
We are dedicated to treating them fairly and
placing them at the heart of everything we do.

Ambitious

We look to the future, keeping our minds open to
embrace new ideas. We welcomne feedback and seek
out opportunities to grow and learn to be our best self.

Determined

We make things happen. We work together
and at pace to deliver the best outcomes
for members.

Empowered

We respect and trust each other to carry out our
work with skill, expertise and integrity. We have the
freedomn and confidence to make decisions and own
the choices we make.

SayisatiopieansiioteR b isudigtticieny
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Top 5 reasons members contacted us In 2021

Our placein o

Complaints General advice
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Member satisfaction scores | Overall satisfaction®

2021 | 2020

85%

89% | 87%
88% | 87%

|
90% | 92%
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Our place in the world

Risk prevention expertise®
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of better healthcare outcomes arm CRICO
Our financial results in-2021
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Message from
our Chair of

Council

sits health, social, and

economic impacts have

reverberated around the world,
the globat COVID pandemic created a
need, and an opportunity, for everyone
to rethink their work. That appties to
me as a clinician and how | treat my
patients, and also in my role as Chair of
MPS Council, ensuring that we continue
to provide services that meet the needs
of members. The different parts of the
world are at different stages in their
recovery from the pandemic. However,
for many of us. myself inctuded, there
is a backlog of patients who have not
been treated for their medical or dental
problem. Some patients will have been
fearful of presenting to their doctor or
dentist. while for others, there may have
been delays in diagnosis and treatment.
Insome, their condition will have
progressed because of the delay, with an
accompanying change in their prognosis.
All of them deserve prompt and effective
treatment and this is a major, current
focus. for many healthcare systems.
There remains a risk that these patients
may seek compensation from the
healthcare system, or from the doctors
or dentists who look after them. To date
these concerns have not, as far as we
can tell, translated into an increased risk
of litigation, but we remain vigilant in
‘monitoring this data and will continue.
to support our members, should they
become a target for such complaints.

The pandemic has also placed a sharp
focus on the things in our lives which

are sustainable and can withstand
challenges, as we all consider our place in
the world going forward. MPS has always

difference wherever possible - for the
good of members, our colleagues, the
wider public, and the communities and
environment in which we all live and work.

For members, this is membership that
adapts and grows with your needs and
the changing landscape, with fRexible
products and improved member
experiences. | invite you to read Our Chief
Executive’s report Supporting members,
on pages 10 to 12, and our Financial
performance report, on pages 19 to 21,
which outline in greater detail all that we
are doing to ensure your MPS continues
to be a strong and stable organisation,
providing you with the protection you
need in a changing world.

MPS also has animportant role in
standing up for health professionals in
the face of emerging challenges and in
campaigning for legal reforms which
support systems

‘When | took on the role of Chair of the

Councilin 2018, MPS was just starting
tolay the foundations of its corporate
social responsibility strategy. We have
come a long way in that time, working
towards the ambitious commitments
we have set for ourselves in relation to
our operational emissions, the waste we
generate, and how and where we should
invest members’ funds. | am pleased to
now be able to share our progress so far
and the next milestones in this journey,
in our Supporting our communities and
the environment section on pages 13
to18.

In ctosing, | want to acknowledge the
tremendous work of members and all
i Ithas beena

across the world. We are leaders in our
sharing of insights and learnings that
reduce risk and improve patient care.
Thus, | am delighted that in 2021 we
worked towards launching our new
research initiative, The MPS Foundation,
with its aim to create sustainable, global
change through funding ambitious,
cross-disciplinary, applied research. i
strongly betieve this will raise the quatity
of care and improve patient safety for
all. You can read more about The MPS
Foundation and our wider campaign
efforts in our President of Council’s
report Supporting the professions
onpages 8and 9.

Beyond this core purpose, we recognise

been a purpx

We are here for our members - people
whose chosen profession is defined by
commitment, compassion and service to
others. It is only right that we reflect those
values in our own operations. and to be
the type of organisation they would like

the ilities we have to the
envirenment, our communities and to
future generations to come. We are ata
critical point in our history. According to
the World Health Organisation. climate
change i “the single biggest health
threat facing humanity, and health

us to be. That means acting
always considering the impacts of
our choices, and making a positive

are already
responding to the health harms caused
by this unfolding crisis™?

The Medical Protectinn Society Linited

very difficult year for everybody as we
strove to mitigate the impact of COVIO
on our personal and working lives. Your
dedication and determination in service
toyour patients throughout these
challenging times has been exemplary.
)also want to thank outgoing Council
members Dr Suzy Lishman, Howard Kew
and Simon Pashby for their expertise
and contributions over the years, and

to extend a warm welcome to newly
appointed Drs Meghana Pandit, Edmund
Morris and Gozie Offiah. { look forward
to working with them on the issues of
import to our members.

lan Eardley
Chair of MPS Council

7. Wordd Health Organmsation Intargovernmencat Panet
alch.

@rcessed 6 Fetruary 2023
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Supporting

the professions

his has been another
extraordinarily challenging year
for all health professionals,

and MPS continues to be in awe of

the commitment and resilience of our

members under extremely difficult

Going into medicine, dentistry and other
healthcare professions — and doing the
best for our patients, day-in day-out - is
something we should all continue to feel
proud of. But we work within systems,

changes that would result in members.
feeling safer in the environment where
‘we work and less likely to be involved
inan adverse incident. They also need
to be at the forefront of influencing

resource restraints and ich

we to
support you all during this difficuit time.

As a student and as a practitioner. it is
soimportant to feel protected by an
organisation such as MPS, if something
goes wrong. From personal experience.
Ican remember missing a fracture
whilst working in a busy emergency
department shortly after | qualified, and
thinking my career was over, then feeting
such relief that someone was there to
help and reassure me.

Sharing inmghts to reuce rick
and improve patient care

The factors that impact on our ability
as healthcare professionals to deliver
safe care are often systemic and
comptex. When there are failings, the
reasons behind these failings rarely boil
down to the transgressions of one or
two individuals. To learn from adverse
incidents, and to better understand
why they happen, requires significant
research and attention.

This is why | am delighted that we have

launched The MPS Foundation - our new,

global. not-for-profit. research initiative,
funding ground-breaking, applied
research into patient safety, patient
outcomes, clinician wellbeing and risk
and mitigation.

Funding will be targeted at researchinto
the impact of human factors and the
impact of processes and delivery models
on patient safety (outcomes and risk).

We will also be funding research into

the personal and professional wellbeing
of ctinicians and the impact of digital
integration and technology, both of which
are crucial to maintaining patient safety.

Members and non-members working

inuniversities, medical schools, third-
sector and private research institutions,

The Medicat
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make this hard. This is why
we need to be part of an organisation
that has our back, so we can continue to
focus on doing the best for our patients.

As healthcare professionals face
growing pressures, especially during
this pandemic, medical defence
organisations need to do more than
just be there for individual members
when things go wrong. Medical defence
organisations need to support the
profession as a whole, championing

hospitals, or hospital groups (public

or private), local hospital networks,
primary health networks, dental
practices and groups, and other
healthcare organisations are all eligible
to apply. More details can be found at
thempsfoundation.org,

Protectinig members during the
pandernic 2nd bevond

Throughout the pandemic, we have been
championing the need to ensure any
complaints and claims against healthcare
professionals are dealt with fairly.

Medical and dental b

. regulators, employers and
legat systems to ensure that when we
face acomplaint or claim, these are
dealt with efficiently. fairly, sensitively
and proportionately.

As President of MPS, | am proud of the
work MPS has done in 2021 to represent,
protect and support the professions
around the world. While it would be
impossible to list everything we have
done, | would like to provide a few

key examples.

to protect healthcare professionals who
might have to make extremely difficult
treatment decisions during this or any
future pandemic.

We have also been vocal in calling for
high-quality wellbeing and mental health
support for healthcare professionals.
Many of us were already feeling very
stretched and, following this past two
years. we are now seeing even more who
are feeling burnout o even suffering
Post Traumatic Stress Disorder. |am
proud that MPS has extended its offer

of counselling support to members.

to our call t

gl this time - but clearly

healthcare professionals that the
context of the pandemic will be taken
into account when they are assessing
any complaints and some have published
guidelines on how their staff should do
this. We will continue to closety monitor
this to ensure regulators do indeed take
this approach.

‘We have been bold in hi

ystem-wide support will be needed
given the challenges many of us have
had to face.

Following New Zealand’s COVID Public
Health Response (Vaccinations) Order
2021 we were presented with a number
ofissues by our members that we have
had to address. in particular, large gaps
were identified in the government’s

of the hard truths exposed by COVID.
suchas the lack of tegal clarity to guide
decisions around the alocation of limited
resources when healthcare systems are
at sk of being overwhelmed. In South
Africa and in the UK, we have led the
way in calling for emergency legislation

Financial 2021

policy around ion exemptions
and this prompted us to urgently

bring the issue to the attention of the
Ministry of Health, Working with the
key stakeholders, we were able to have
our members issues addressed and
suggestions adopted.

L e @EienE) off e v FS
PLoLeSSIONSTIOUNEREERVOLT]

Reforming clinical

negligence claims

MPS has continued to campaign for
reforms that ensure clinical negligence
claims are dealt with more quickly and
sensitively and in a way that reduces
costs for all parties,

Inlrefand, we are pushing for the
introduction of pre-actional protocols,
which would make solicitors subject to
obligations that would resolve many
clinical negligence claims earlier in the
process, without the need for court
proceedings. At the end of 2021, as part
of an ongoing campaign, we coordinated
ajoint letter to the justice minister
urging her to introduce the necessary
regulations. We will continue to push for
these important reforms.

InNew Zealand, we ing in

and on behalf of the whole profession -
supported a member in appealing a High
Court judgment.

Challenging regutators

There are few developments that worry
a healthcare professional more than
receiving a letter from the regulator.
Given the power regulators have, and
their role as the guardians of professional
standards, it is important that
healthcare professionals have someone

Doctors in South Africa have been
particularly concerned given there

is a very low threshold in law for
blameworthiness when a patient

dies while under medical care. This

has resulted in errors of judgement

in complex healthcare environments.
being criminalised, and heatthcare
professionals being convicted
regardless of their intent. This is why
we coordinated a joint letter which was.
signed by nine of South Africa’s leading

closely monitoring the and
ing them whey iate.

g ions, urging the
G toinitiate a review into

1n 2021, we were pleased to be able to
secure the payment of damages by the
General Dental Council to a member
after the regulator acted untawfully in
undertaking an under-guise operation
without reasonable justification, using
afictiti i & t

the Supreme Court on an interpretation
of the relevant legislation that would
impose wide-ranging vicarious liability
on all healthcare providers, making them
liable for their colleagues’ negligence.

We also continue to oppose claims that
we think are unfair and which will have a
negative impact on the wider i

investigators. This is perhaps an extreme
example that sits alongside the wider
number of healthcare professionals
facing an investigation who we support
every day. But it is a clear example of how
we go above and beyond in supporting
not just individual members but also the
wider profession, using our discretion to
stand up to ng we think is wrong.

Dentists in England and Wales have
been particularly concerned about the
growing trend of claimant law firms
pursuing claims against practice owners
rather than the self-employed dentists
who provided the treatment and against
whom negligence is alleged. This is
happening on a large scale, including in
cases where the treating dentists have
been identified and are willing to respond
to the claim.

These types of cases cause real distress
for practice owners. The potential
impact to the long-established
relationships and the arrangements that
exist between practice owners and their
associates also cannot be understated.
This iIs why we - on a point of principle

‘We have supported reforms that would
enable regulators more discretion to
close less serious cases more quickly. as
well as the need to remove the General
Medical Council's (GMC) power to appeal
panel decisions.

Protecting members from

eriminal prosecution

OF the many risks faced by doctors, the
threat to our liberty is the most extreme.
‘While the numbers are very smatl, we.
are called upon to support and provide
the best possible protection to members
who end up facing criminal charges as.
aresult of alleged mistakes in their
clinical practice.

The Medical Protection Society Lirmited |

culpable homicide law and its application
ina healthcare setting.

Looking ahead

Incountries that are fortunate enough to
have widely vaccinated populations, we
can look forward to significantly lower
tevels of iliness, hospitalisations and
deaths. In 2022 we can also hopefully
focus more on restoring healthcare and
dental services, starting to clear the
backlog and importantly, looking after
ourselves so we can continue to look
after our patients.

At the same time, no doubt inquiries will
start to be held in many more countries.
to tearn lessons for the future. In 2021,
we submitted our views to the inquiry
launched in Scotland and we will be
looking to represent members in this and
other inquiries as they progress.

None of us truly know what the future
holds, but we can assure you that
MPS is committed to championing
and protecting the professions from
whatever challenges lie ahead.

Professor Dame Jane Dacre
President of MPS Council

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021 |
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Supporting
members

PS exists to protect our
members. It is in our name,
Medical Protection Society.

Protection is more than defence; it
encompasses everything that we

do. We defend members against
claims of clinical negligence and other

This is demonstrated by the following
example: MPS was notified of a claim

in Hong Kong in 2001 relating to a
potential adverse clinical event in 2000.
We settled the claim last year, 21 years
after the adverse clinical event. The
passage of time means that inflation
has had a significant impact on the
eventuat value which was

ttes from their pr
practice. We provide a 24-hours-a-
day. 365-days-a-year, medicolegal and
dentolegal telephone advisory service.
We undertake an unparalleled range
of risk management education to help
members better understand and reduce
their risk. We provide assistance with
media enquiries, a free counsetling
service from our third-party partners,
and we lobby legislators, reguators
and key stakeholders on matters of
importance to MPS and our members.

| appreciate that in a busy clinical life,
especially in the last two years, you
will probably not give a first - let alone
asecond thought - to the benefits of

around E23m. It is a staggering sum
now, but such a sum would have been
unthinkable in 2000 when the member
paid their subscription.

Ishare this, because you need to be
assured that the organisation in whom
you trust your professional future is both
‘committed to the market and has the
longevity to be there in the future, should
you need them. MPS is that organisation.

1n 2022, we celebrate 130 years
of serving members. This clearty
demonstrates commitment, but it also
demonstrates our sustainability. The

d i d dentistry,

MPS mermbership, unless of course

you find you have need of our services.
However, should the need arise, and
your professional future be at risk, you
will want to be confident that you are
adequately protected. Furthermore, the
long-tail nature of clinical negligence
means that you will need to have
confidence not just for next year. but for
five, 10 or even 20 years on.

the healthcare systems in which our
members work, technology. patient
expectations and the legal systems
have all developed beyond recognition
from our founding in 1892, it's because
my predecessors focused on ensuring
asustainable future that MPS is the
organisation it is today - the largest
discretionary provider of protection to
healthcare professionals in the world,

financially secure, international, member-
owned and member-focused.

My role, like that of my predecessors,

is to ensure a secure future for MPS, so
that we can honour the commitment we.
make to members when we accept their
subscriptions. At the heart of a secure
future 1s our financial strength, ensuring
that we have funds to meet the costs

of claims as they fall due. As the case
inHong Kong demonstrates, inflation

n clinical negligence can mean future
payments could be unthinkably large by
current standards. | am pleased to say
that MPS ends 2021 in a strong financial
position. as you will see in the Financial
performance report on pages 19 to 21.

However, sustainability is more than
just financiat strength. We needto
remain relevant to members. We need
tounderstand their changing needs and
adapt to them. We need to invest in
technology to ensure that our systems
and services are efficient and effective.
We need to understand the risks of
running an organisation like MPS and
ensure that we control and mitigate
those risks appropriately. We also need
to be seen as an inviting organisation to
work for, attracting and retaining talent.

10
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and services

We have done much in the last year
to develop as an organisation, remain
refevant, improve our service, invest in
the organisation and continue to meet
the changing needs of members.

In 2021 we consolidated our in-country
professional services in South Africa
and lreland that we initiated in 2020.
‘We now have 50 colleagues in South

02021 we anew vicarious
liability product for our dental members
inthe UK, in response to growing concern
from practice owners that they were
increasingly being held liable for the
actions of their associates. In addition

to developing a product to meet a
growing need. we also fought a test-
case on vicarious liability, on behalf of a
member. We lost the case at the High
Court, but we appealed, and the Court
of Appeal overturned part of the original

Africaand 22 in Ireland,

in relation to vicarious liability

providing our wil tofight
to members and ensuring a more important matters on behalf of members
responsive, knowledgeable, and agile and the wider professions.

service than before. In 2022, we plan to
take steps to improve our professional
service for members in Hong Kong,
Singapore and Malaysia.

In 2021 we continued to develop limited
income grades, a product initiative
introduced in 2020 We wanted to refiect

the reduced level of clinical activity that
some members experienced because
of COVID.

We are developing a pricing approach
called Types of Work, to ensure that

the price we charge better reflects the
amount and nature of members’ clinical
activity. This is in direct response to
feedback from members that they want
to pay for the risk their clinical practice
presents to MPS,

Finally, 2021 also saw us determine
our underwriting approach to
telemedicine, so that we could best
support members faced with its
growth during the pandemic.

el A ue Gt il
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Sn‘é“aimﬂf'fw through We are doing what we can to improve face of proposals to reduce the Court
industry referm Discount Rate, which would result in

For many years now the cost of
indemnity has grown faster than
members’ income, and 5o our
subscriptions have become increasingly
costly to them, both absolutety and
relatively. This is the nature of clinical
negligence in the countries in which

we operate, where the cost of claims
inflation far autstrips retail price and
wage inflation.

If this trend continues. and past evidence
would suggest that it will, this means
that clinical negligence indemnity will
become unaffordable at some point.

this situation by promoting tort law
reform in several countries. We have
engaged with the Health and Social
Care Select Committee in the UK to
promote tort law reform ideas. We have,
in conjunction with several prominent
partners, advocated for the introduction
of pre-action protocols and court
management rules in ireland, and we:
have made a detailed submission to the
South Africa Law Reform Commission’s
discussion paper on medicolegal claims,
which was launched in November 2021.

We have recently worked in Northern
Ireland and the Republic of irefand in the

anincrease in settlement values and a
rise in subscriptions. We have sought to
influence the theory and mechanism of
the calcutation of the Court Discount
Rate, and to make sure there is
understanding of the consequences

for the healthcare professions of any
reduction in the rate.

In addition, we continue to robustly
defend all claims that are worthy of a
defence, to help contro! our costs and
therefore hold our subscriptions as low
as possible.

Linnted
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Another way to influence the
affordability of indemnity is to help
rmembers understand therr risk and
support them to manage and mitigate it.
MPS's experience and scope in this area
is. by any other i i
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These initiatives have contributed

to strong colleague engagement,
leadership and inclusion scores. In 2021,
our engagement score was 87%, an
improvement of 1 percentage point
from an all-time high at the end of 2020.
placing MPS firmly in the top quartile

We held 104 webinars in 2021 which
attracted more than 30,000 individual
members. We launched our first virtual
interactive workshops and received
accreditation by Harvard Medical
Institution’s risk management arm
CRICO. to deliver its safety audit for
client hospitals, with the first carried out
for a hospital in the British Virgin Istands.

N thepunh

As a service and knowledge organisation,
the quality of our colleagues will be
reflected in the service we provide to
members. So, we continue to work hard
to ensure we attract and retain the

very best talent to deliver both front

fine services to members, as well as
supporting that service through back-
office activity.

‘We have done much to support and
promote wellbeing for our colleagues
during another difficuit year. We've
moved all of our internal training

and recruitment to a virtuat world.
We have developed many initiatives
to improve inclusion and diversity
within MPS, We are also developing a
comprehensive learning academy to
ensure that all our roles have defined
knowledge and experience sets.
defined working practices and a clear
path for colleagues to develop skills
and knowledge.

of UK isations.? Qur leadership
score was 89%. an improvement of 4
points, again fi 1ty

high of 85% at the end of 2020.

We measured our colleagues’ perception
of how inclusive MPS was for the first
time in March 2021. At the time the
score was 73% and this improved to 78%
by the year end. We aspire to Increase
this and are aware that minority groups
within MPS present a lower score for
inclusion — so we still have work to do.

bt g

e Y
Sustainability also requires an
organisation to anticipate the external
factors that might impact its business,
and to accommodate them as best

as possible to minimise their negative
impact. The last few years have seen
unprecedented external challenges.

In 2018, state indemnity was introduced
for general practice in England and
Wales. This resulted in a loss of about.
25% of MPS’s income, but we have
worked hard to lessen the impact. In
2018, the UK Government issued a
consultation that pointed strongly to
their desire to regulate the medical
defence industry. As a result, MPS

has worked to develop an insurance
capability and we were successful in
registering our own syndicate at Lloyd's
of London at the start of 2022. giving
us the necessary capability to offer
insurance to members, if required.

After 130 years, MPS remains a mutual
organisation, owned by its members

and driven by the need to act in the best
interest of those members. Member
feedback ctearly demonstrates a high
degree of satisfaction, but we are not.
complacent. We continually strive

to improve the quality of our service

and meet the ever-changing needs of
members - ensuring MPS remains a
sustainable organisation that members
can be confident will be here should they
need to seek our assistance in the future.

Such assurance and confidence would
not be possible without the continued
support of our existing members, for
which we are extremely grateful, and
for the continued work of my MPS
colleagues who unstintingly strive to

workin the best interest of our members.

Iwould like to acknowledge and thank
them for their work.

Simon Kayll
Chief Executive

3 Agbenchmarkediy: nsy Tancy g RerE ViR

Supporting our
communities

and the

environment

For a greener, fairer and
more sustainable future

In our day-to-day work, by helping members we help to serve
the patients they care for. Our Values therefore reflect members’
values, meaning we can all take pride in what we do and the vital
part we play within healthcare delivery.

But we also have an opportunity to have a positive effect on the
wider envifonmental and societat issues facing our world. That

is why we have joined numerous international organisations

and governments in adopting the United Nation's Sustainable
Devetopment Goals (SDG) and Principles for Responsible Investing.

Guiding usis our Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) strategy,
which drives us to:

= operate in an ethical and sustainable way

- deal with our environmental and social impact

= foster a culture of fairness, respect and belonging, and

«  take rreaningful actions towards our goals.

in 2021, we established a CSR Committee, which discusses
important organisation-wide initiatives, oversees our charitable
activities and monitors progress on targets.
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[Actions]

St the heart of progressyand
\We e committed to using)
PSTirvoice to champlona,
culture of SQuality dversity,
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ih UK dénitistryexploring and

ld3VElbping OpportUTItis for

[Seeking organi
£0 change at all IEvels:

We'supported the UK's General)

representation and inclision, and

Medical Council (GHC) introduction,
lof Eargets ta reduce the number of

referrals for ethinic minority doctors
Pand those who graduated overseas)

rétirning from extended family,
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5nd 38000 Work:fé balince’

o e —— e
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i Dentistry, GoupsTeport) ate e

Eddressing fackinand discimination il U Ain
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F3ce starting work in the NHSYAS

markeEs and actvely seek
0 refléct the diversity of the
healthcare profession in

progression and growth]

Colieagues LRWe treat all cotieagues with respect

BR Ve act.to remove barriers, both real
Shd perceved, to colléagues, career

jWe operate, various colle:
(networks to| DQIT!OK& and support,
diversity and Inclusion including

Gur Diversity & Inclision Forum]

BY e seck to ensure oue rewaid
JSCroSs MPS 5 falr, eqyitabley

measurabls and ransparent

LA e pubiish 0vr gender pay)
report annually)
lusion: Equality an i

Emiployes Engagement Forumy

Te-1ed hetworker forums,

Cultiure section on pages 220 23
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—
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healthand wel

[Actions]
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ess that they fdel Could impact]
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the wellbeing of medical and dentat
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Care to the World s miost Vulnerable)
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[N Z022, yee are COmMITtng t0

the following further actions?

PL e vill stop heating/cooling the
transient Spaces in our offices3

LR We will be performing targeted,
réviews tG reduce our Use of
J¥itchen equipment such as)

Ketttes and dishwashers.

PYFiPs Rasa proactive approach to energy,
management by monitoring monthy,

onsumption higures and has completed
Erergy Savings Oppor tunitlés Stheme,

[The electricity contract is supplied by,
renewablé energy and the emissions have,
eei adjusted BCCoTgingly)
LRWe hold a green gas contract for our;
UK Facllities WhichTedices our
Srmissions further)

[-XWe willinstall LED lighting
facross our LeedSTUK Gstate

THS iS tha estate which S bot
lowried and occupied by MPS)

build a robust pictdre

Building energy efficien
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CSR report

jSDG] Commitment /gTarget!
—_—— e e

[Actions]

BYV/EEsK ol peonic o consider
thié environment at ail times; by,
ACvel] ricouraging Colleagues,
G minimise the use of natural

LR vve donate unwanred information,
 donate nwa
and camunlcau‘on Technology,

l

argansations of (:ompu

evlce< 0 conserve water In our
tollet Tistems, which will reuce,

four wateryisage each tmea toilet

PY Wil Install tap gerators across
U operations to help further
redlica i Watel usage)

of tropical forest Currentlyinden

imiingnt threat of deforestatian

Ere FUramentaly]

the Principlesy

X Wehave signedup to the UN PRI}

L Environmen tal Social Governance,

in 2022) we are committing to the,

following Fitheractions

e e
[y ore inforrnation on our ESG.
itvesting on page 1
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Responsiblelandlethicallinvestingd

\We aim to us3 ourscale and abllity to make a real, positive.
impact on the companies and markets in which we invest and

(capital (mu}(lng sure policies are In place to ensure’
Rave the T rlght culture and treat workers fairly)

The Council’s Bsset and Liability Committee (ALCO) oversees,
\ssetand Liability Compmittes (ALCO
i work and has Pnplemented the Following eonsiderationsy

anaging £SG factors?
mes € believe there should

P S T e e
including engagement and divestment}
'A% far s IS pracically possiblerwe breakdown investment
k Py
decision-rnaking and monitoring into Environmental
fand Goverrlancecomponentssepara:ely, To encure that)
et g
progress. |5bemg ‘made on all three areas. Indlvldua lly,'a
Fwall 350 £ SG more generally ot 3 total portolio (evel]

lVoting and engagement|

PN IT I UENL
effective ta initiate, change than divesting and 50 will seek to]

tions o the investment managers in

hese actions)

L3 Divestment will be considered ona pragmatic basis; in the,
event that the engagement with the investment manager,
[Fas not proguced poSItive resuls)

Monitoring and reporting:

We will continue to COmmURICate Progress and canvas views)

from key stakeholdersYncluding mermbersy

[RwWe seek to monitor key ESG metr»:s, 'such as carbon,

Awithin the investment portrolio to inderstand the mpact o
their investments and monitor how this evatves overtime
oo, 300 OTLOGTIOW s evolves Cren Ve
LYESG FaTtorsare ynamis ang contmually SVl thererore

Mpsm_a_:c‘o‘mprv iR ESrnaLreportng and
external (publlshmg) requirements¥and further consider,

Collaboration With other Investors and organisations}

W have already started our jaumey 10 transition our portfolio
IAto more ESGfocused Funds We estabished ou ESG
Investing Eol_ucv 2and ESG Steering Group in 2021¥specifically to
150K Into these fundsymonitor and report on our actvitias] We,
industries or companies which have
/health and environmental impacts: We look to!
Invest in sectors or businesses that provide a positive impact)
such as those that suppart climate and social solutions
[We are investigating opportunities to allocate investment]|
Fonding o these sectors where there is clear algnment with

improve the communities and environment in which we all live
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Net zero

Net Zero refers to a state In which the greenhouse gases (such
as carbon dioxide) going into the atmosphere are balanced

by remaoval out of the atmosphere. The term Net Zerois
important because - for carbon dioxide at least - this is the
state at which global warming staps.

We all have a responsibility to help limit the effects of climate
change, which Is why we are targeting Net Zero emissions in
terms of our operations by the end of 2025,

Beyond 2025, we plan to embed this across our supply chain
and partnerships.

Qur carbon ¢missions 'n 2021

AsMPS is defined as a large company by the Companies Act
2006, we continue to report in line with Streamiined Energy
and Carbon Reporting (SECR) legistation, to repost on our
energy and carbon usage in the UK. All scope 1 and 2 sources
of energy and emissions have been disclosed as well as
mandatory scope 3 sources of energy and emissians. These
disclosures cover all UK activities across the Group.

Energy consumption (kWh)

Electricity 2416.12 250302
Natoral Gas - " ssss
B Gas 71363 -

Transport Fusls %27 3338

Total Energy Consumption 3,155.02  3,367.38

Our CSR mizasures now form part of a wider Net Zero strategy
by 2025. To that end we have engaged a consultant to measure
our globat emissions and to use these figures on a virtual model
of our Leeds buidings to propose a halistic strategy of reduction.
This is quite a wide ranging piece which will start this year and
run over the period to 2025. It includes both physical changes,
behaviour changes and also strategles which encompass travel
During 2021, MPS moved into a Green Gas Contract, or 100%
Bio Gas which has seen emissions fall significantly.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions {tCO2e)

Natural Gas

Bio Gas

Transport Fuel for Company Vehictes
From Combustion of Fusl

From Purchased Electricity, Steam,
Heat and Cooling

From Other Activities including
Process and Fugitive

Total Gross Emissions 744.85
Renewable Electrcity X (35049
Total Net Emissions 354.36

Intensity Ratios

oo, 2 At 5502 Vi

b e : 0208 F 020124
Annual MWh 2988 3.269
Annual tCO2e per No. of FTE Employees 0010 0.387

SECR methodology

All conversion factors and fuel properties used have been taken
from the 2021 “UK Gavernment Greenhouse Gas Conversion
Factors for Company Reporting” published by the Departrnent
for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS) and the
Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs (DEFRA).
Average fuel prices have been taken from *Retall Prices of
Petroleum Products and Crude Oit Price Index” pubtished by
BEIS. All greenhouse gas emissions have been converted and
expressed in terms of their carbon dioxide equivalence.

Where possible, energy consumption expressed inklowatt-
hours has been taken from suppliers’ invoices, Actual
consumption was not available for the London site which has
utilties supplied by the landlord, therefore the consumption has
beenestimated from the cost using the average unit rate of all
other sites. Conversion factors for the average UK generation
mix have been used to calculate greenhouse gas emissions.

The mileage of fuet purchases for company owned-vehicles
has been taken from expense records for 2021. The conversion
factors for average forecourt blends have been used to

caleutate greenhouse gas emissions and underlying energy use,

No other sources of emissions have been identified.

e Med cal Protectice 1 Soorty Limted  Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021

Financial

or my first financial report to members, | am pleased
to share that net contribution to member funds

7 increased by £94m in 2021 (2020: £44m surplus).
The net contribution this year and compared to 2020 was
mainly driven by better than expected returns from the
investment portfolio.

Mamrhe vp e geegme € orimr the w oy o
Member numbers have increased year-on-year in all major
regions, despite challenges in the student market and in areas
which were impacted by longer lockdowns and restrictions on
private practice than initially anticipated.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, member subscription
income increased by 10% to £296m (2020: £268m). The 2020
subscription relief initiative (£35my), to support members
during the first year of the pandemic. was not replicated in
2021, although members have been able to reduce activity
levels on renewal as a result of new product initiatives.
Excluding this relief, there was a decrease in income of 2%,
driven by our commitment to improve prices for members, as
well i OVID lockd incertain

Casifonas

Close management of our cost base is a key component of
MPS’s strategy. For the year ended 31 December 2021, MPS
continued to review costs across altareas of our business
to ensure we delivered the best value for members. MPS is
committed to achieving further progress on costs in 2022
and beyond.

Claims and advisory costs
Claims costs and associated legal costs represent external
legal costs and settlement costs for ctaims of negligence,
together with the change in value during the year of all claims
of negligence that have been reported and accepted by MPS. In
2021, these costs increased by 10% to £214m driven by a small
number of one-off large ctaims in Ireland and in Hong Kong, two
of which were birth injury claims, and an increased frequency,
relative to expected, for Ireland Medical over the more recent
three incident years.

Advisory and asscciated legal costs represent external costs
and a proportion of MPS internal costs for matters other than
negligence. In 2021 these costs increased by 23% to E55m.
Internal costs increased as MPS continues to provide more in-
house support across UK, Ireland, Singapore and South Africa,
In 2020 there was a reduction in the estimated cost of non-
negligence claims that had been reported and accepted. This
was not repeated in 2021.

Administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, MPS saw anincrease
in administrative expenses to £66m (2020: £44m). Within
this, MPS recognised a write-down of its owned properties
and provided for a one-off onerous lease cost of £16m (2020:
Enil) for premises in London, in line with applicable accounting
standards. Excluding these charges, underlying administrative
expenses were broadly in line with 2020.

‘The Medical Protection Socety Limited  Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021
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~inancia: performance repor:

Balance Sheet

MPS's financial position remains robust and we continue

to have the largest asset portfolio of any medical defence
organisation in the world. As at 31 December 2021, MPShad a
net asset value of £2,158m, with the increase since 2020 being
driven through asset growth and stable liabilities.

To monitor the financial health of MPS, we also monitor the

of fut istance relating id tyet
reported. This is known as the Estimated Potential Future Cost
(EPFC). EPFC is not recognised as a liability until MPS exercises
its di toassist, therefo in EPFC are not.
recognised in the C i of C i
Income. As MPS offers occurrence-based discretionary
indemniity, MPS takes the potential quantum of EPFC into careful
consideration when managing the financial position of the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the estimated future cost of assistance
and support was £870m (2020: £978m). This includes allowances.
for the added exposure of vicarious liability, delayed claims asa
resutt of the COVID backlog and for inappropriate surgical mesh
practices. For further detail on EPFC, see note 22 on page 79.

Taking EPFC into consideration, the net asset value of MPS as
at 31 December 2021 would still represent £1,288m (2020:
£1,059m) of assets in excess of liabilities and expected future
potential claims, demonstrating the financial strength of

the business.

Investment portfolic

MPS maintains a well-diversified portfolio across a number of
financial instruments and at the end of December 2021, MPS
assets under management were £2,623m (2020: £2.562m).

Invastment retums

MPS uses Return on Investments as the key measure, witha
targeted return of +3% above the risk-free rate (ie the rate of
return of an investment with no risk of loss). The performance
of the overall portfotio is shown below, using this metric:

During 2021 we saw global financial markets bounce back, as
the vaccination rollouts allowed economies to reopen across
the globe.

Credit markets delivered positive returns in 2021, benefitting
from narrowing credit spreads, low default rates and
supportive monetary policies. despite rising concerns towards
the end of the year that rising inflation may be more permanent
than initial expectations.

MPS's assets that are linked to inflation outperformed in 2021,
with long-lease property being the largest contributor. In
addition, infrastructure assets (mainly US linked) benefitted
from the successful vaccine roll out and ongoing federal
government stimulus.

UK bonds and gilts have delivered positive returns over 2021,
despite a gradual decline over the final nine months of the

year, driven by inflationary pressures and the October 2021
announcement that future gilt issuance would be significantly
lower than first expected. In South Africa, MPS's inflation-linked
bonds have delivered positive returns as a result of increased
levels of inflation,

20 TheMedical Protection Society Limited | AnnuatReport and Financial Statements 2021
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Estimated cieims

For reported and accepted i3 costs 3

our actuarial team look at the historical trends and calculate

an expected cost. As at 31 December 2021, MPS recognised
i relating to claims and f £833m.

higher than in 2020 (note 17).

The estimates which MPS applies to the final setttement
values of claims and cases changes over time, dependent on

A sustainable future

Firstly. to our investment strategy. MPS has a well-
diversified portfotio across asset class and geography
and management continues to Monitor exposure to
market risk. adjusting accordingly.

In addition to this, | believe in a sustainable future for MPS, its
members, future members and the society that we operate in.
We can all do more to achieve this; | am committed to ensuring

g actuarial ptions. One key isthe
discount rate and 2021 saw underlying risk-free rates increase
resulting in a lower value of claims and cases provisions based
on today’s time value of money.

Akey component of the discount rate fs the Personat Injury
Discount Rate (PIDR). Two changes are noted with PIDR, both
of which increased the cost of current and future personal
injury compensation. First, the Northern Ireland PIDR was
dramatically lowered from 2.5% to -1.75% in May 2021.
Secondly, the PIDR rate in Ireland is expected to change in
2022. Both of these changes impact claims where future
costs are involved, such as care costs and loss of earnings and
means that those claims yet to be settled through the courts,
in both regions, will now cost more than initially estimated.
Both of these changes have been recognised in the financial
statements in the year ended 31 December 2021.

‘The Medical Protectinn Society Lirnited ! Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021

our i portfolio can have a positive impact on the
environment and soclety, whilst also providing the necessary
returns. The new ESG Investing Policy created in 2021 will
identify new opportunities to do this, whilst also monitoring
and reporting on the ESG activities of our current portfolio. |
look forward to providing updates during 2022. Further detail
can be found in the Supporting our communities and the
environment section on pages 16 and 17.

Secondly. MPS is very aware of the rising cost of indemnity
to our members and increasing pressures outside of MPS's
control, such as changes in PIDR and the rise in inflation.
MPS is committed to focusing on cost efficiencies within the
‘organisation, to help mitigate some of these pressures.

Finally, and above all. MPS is, and will continue to be, strong
and secure. The business is well placed to support members
with the products and services they need to manage their
professional risks.

I would like to thank all our members for their loyalty in
2021 and to thank MPS colleagues for their contribution
toour success.

Richard Pile
Executive Director of Finance
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Our people

and culture

BavigatekpeletiiuilihailengesioaaiiegalliiskSly
iferslan e Vusesis dgnanebeweelly@n ing

S Off @ ety e dhver Wik sgriless

The quality of members' experience —
from product design, ease of access and
the quality of support and advice, to the
value of our education programmes, the
pricing of risk and much more - requires
amember-first mindset and a culture

of excellence.

Therefore, attracting, devetoping and
retaining high-performing colleagues is
vital for the success of MPS.

inclusion, equality and diversity
Respect for each other and appreciation
of our differences fie at the heart of

our Values.

At MPS we want everyone to feel
represented, nurtured and supported

to be thenselves, and know they are
valued, and empowered to do their very
best for members.

We need people who have different
experiences and expertise, and bring
innovation, creativity and a fresh
perspective. Critically we are committed
to ensuring that our culture allows
colleagues to flourish. realise their true
potential and achieve the recognition
they deserve.

That is why Diversity and Inclusion (&)
is one of our strategic goals with a focus
on building a more inclusive culture and
improving the representation of gender,
ethnicity, sexuality and disability at all
levels across MPS. Our Inclusion, Equality
and Diversity Policy is at the heart of

The: Medical Protection Soci:ty Luivted

this commitment and underpins our
DR Strategy.

To monitor our progress, we launched
an Inclusion Survey in Spring 2021

and have since created Inclusion and
Representation Indexes with targets
to be achieved by 2025. Pleasingly
our December 2021 inclusion Index
result showed a 5 percentage points
improvement to 78% (8 percentage
points above the external benchmark)
indicating that our actions are making a
difference to our people.

2021 has been a year where the
implementation of our D& Strategy

has certainly gained momentum. The
insight we have gained from our D&
data has been invaluable and our D&I
Forum remains committed to sponsoring
the collation of improved diversity data
under the banner #includeme - enabling
us to better understand our people and
continue to shape the D&I Strategy for
the future.

Diversity & Inclusion Forum

Our global D& Forum comprises.
colleagues from diverse backgrounds
‘who champion initiatives that deliver
on our D& Strategy and action plan.
Complementing our D& Forum are
the Women'’s Inspirational, Parenting

networks are being created by those who
feel passionately about enhancing our
understanding of potentially sensitive
diversity matters which are important to
them. In turn this honest and respectful
dialogue informs actions that make a
sustainable change for the better.

Initiatives championed by the D&
Forum and Networks implemented
in 2021 include:

Upward Mentoring Scheme to
increase diversity of thought and
provide development opportunities
for our junior colleagues. All the
Executive and many Non-Executive
Directors have a mentor froma
different background to themselves.
The introduction of Public Holiday
Trading where colleagues ‘trade’
public holidays with days that matter
most to them such as Chinese New
YYear. Ramadan, Eid, Pride Week

and Hanukkah,

A campaign to encourage colleagues
to provide their diversity data.
Setting and obtaining Executive and
Council's agreement to the Inclusion
Index and Diversity Representation
five-year targets.

Adopting the Halo Code, the UK's first
Black hair code which we hope will
move us closer to a world free from

and Networks.
been enriched this year with the launch
of our Proud@MPS (LGBTQIA+), Black,

and where all Black
members of our community have
their identities fully recognised

Asianand Networks. We
are delighted that these colleague-led

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023
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Qur education on D& matters has
also gained more traction during the
year, with a caiendar of annual events,
supported by Forum and Network
members regularly posting blogs to
engender debate. ‘Diversity Moments’
have also been embedded across MPS,
creating time for reflection and debate
on diversity and inclusion matters, and
reinforcing our culture where open
discussion and proactive action is

the norm.

Closing the gender pay gap

We are pleased that our overall gender
pay gap has continued to reduce in 2021,
with the average hourly rate differing

by 3% o less for the vast majority

of colleagues.

Although delighted to be making
progress, we know we are not where
we want to be and are committed to
improving the representation in senior
leadership not only across gender but
also ethnicity, disability and sexuality.
Oetails of Gender Pay reports for

the last five years can be found at
medicalprotection.org/genderpay.

| |
3% or less j

Equal opportunities
The rights of disabled persons and
the responsibilities of the Group are
embedded within our Inclusion, Equatity
and Diversity policy. The needs of
disabled colleagues, including workplace
modifications for exarmple, are given
priority and accormodated whenever
possible. All colleagues are required to
comply with the policy and toact in
withits objectives

any barriers to equal opportunity.

Recruitment and retention

‘We are committed to ‘growing our own’
and seeing our talent progress through
the organisation. Talent management is a
continuous process throughout the year
and throughout every colleague’s career
cycle, with the aim of building a diverse
ool of highly talented people, capable
of supporting our current and future
business requirements.

on our peogle. In response, our Mental
Health First Aider Network has grown
with newly trained colleagues covering
wider territories and time zones.

The annual Wellbeing Calendar for

2021 provided a variety of activities and
themes that were relevant to colleagues
and were well attended:

Walking Month offered a series of

Weh: ©

recruitment and promotion processes
with the aim to ensure a diverse shortlist
of candidates. We have assessed our
preferred recruitment agencies and the
job boards we use for advertisernents
and introduced two ies who

across teams naturally
raising awareness of the physical
benefits of daily exercise and
creating a social feeling where
colleagues supported each other
and cetebrated personal and team

specialise in attracting diverse talent. .
This has helped us successFully appoint

both female candidates and candidates
from under-represented groups. In

2021, we filled a total of 221 vacancies

with 151 of these filled with external
candidates and 70 internal candidates
(32%). Of the external candidates 59%

were female and 41% male.

‘We remain i to the -

, virtually,

In June we held the first World
Wellbeing Week showcasing videos
from senior leaders discussing the
importance of wellbeing and their
personal stories. This helped to
reduce the stigma associated with
talking about mental health and
asking for help and encouraged
colleagues 1o take controt of their
ownwellbeing.

focused on Men's Health

diversity of our Board (MPS Council) and
the Dental Board and stipulated that
any Non-Executive Director recruitment
must have a balanced shortlist of
candidates in terms of gender, age
and ethnicity. In 2021, we have been
delighted to welcome new Council and
Dental Board Non-Executive Directors

i d lived -

Awareness in particular mate
suicide. External experts detivered
interactive sessions which are now
accessible on our internal MPS
Academy. Men’s Health Awareness
will return in 2022 and has inspired a
Women'’s Health Awareness month
tobe run In the year,

[0} our Risk Prevention

experiences. Further detail can be found
in our Remuneration report on page 45.

Colleague wellbeing

The health and wellbeing of our people

has been a key focus to ensure everyone  «
has felt supported, resilient, and able

to provide guidance and service to

members through what has been a

difficult and distressing time for many.

The well-established Wellbeing
Committee extended its global
representation so that during the
pandemic it could better support the
varying cultural needs of colleagues
and the impact of prolonged lockdowns

The t1edical Protactin Society Linited 1 Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021

+

team ran a session on Caring for your
Mental Health and shared practical
ways to sustain physical and mental
wellbeing during times of challenges.
and uncertainty.

Interactive wellbeing webinars were
held throughout the year covering
topics such as Taking Care of Yourself
in the Pandemic, sleep health, physio
tips and resilience, meditation and
fitness bootcamps - combining
social support with physical and
mental wellbeing.

i
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Our people and culture

These initiatives received many positive
comments such as:

Flexible working

At the beginning of 2021, we announced
our commitment to continue home
working, a decision in line with most

“The Wellbeing Committec is doing a
d 1 Joyed the

tivities and upde

g some
about the future and their

ps

*It’s great that MPS has a wellbeing
Committee and fappreciate ol the
different toples they look after”

First Aders has provided much needed
support in what has been avary
chatlenging 8 months.”

“Recovering from COVID is tough, so
the Wellbeing support s perfect for
me. It's great to have rescurces at our

' “The intreduction of the Mental Health
I fingertips. Thanis.”

Outstanding cutture
and engagement

‘We are delighted that our focus and
investment in our people has been
recognised through our excellent 2021
Employee Survey Results.

Our engagement score of 89% places
MPS in the upper quartile of all external
organisations surveyed by People
Insights - 7 percentage points above

the external benchmark and an award of
*Outstanding Workplace - 2021" from
our external survey provider.

Reflecting the positive Employee Survey
results, we have also seen many positive
reviews on Glassdoor and currently have
arating of 39 out of 5.

ability to maintain a work-life balance.

Building leadership capability remained a
strategic priority in 2021 as it is essential
that we have quality leaders who
consistently live our Values and reinforce
‘putting members first’.

Over 150 leaders from across MPS
globally have now successfully

d the Employee
Forum and qur people directly, to help
co-create a ‘New Reality’ - a policy
on our future ways of working, whilst
ensuring that we continue to support our
members and each other. This will inform
our future office footprint, working
environment and policy design and
implementation.

New Reality is based upon full trust

and empowerment. and we are
committed to working with our people
throughout the year to ensure its
successfulimplementation. This includes
delivering the technological and physical

capabilities for successful hybrid working.

MPS Values Awards

Our Values of Member First, Ambitious,
Determined and Empowered (MADE
for Members) are celebrated through
the MPS Values Awards. We recognise
the exceptional actions of colleagues
who live and breathe the MPS values
and for the first time in 2021, we were
delighted to make a cross-divisional
cotlaboration award to a team who
MADE a tangible difference to the
organisation and members.

Developing ourselves and our teaders
We aspire for our colleagues to be
recognised as experts in their field,
maximise their potential and build the
skills, knowledge and experience to

provide the service our members deserve.

Throughout 2021 we continued to
develop our MPS Academy, supported
by Training and Competence Schemes,
Technical Development Frameworks,
Learning Pathways, newly designed
learning materials and accreditations.

24, TheMedical Protectiorn Society Limited { Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021
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through our Leadership
Programme and, we have seen a strong
improvement in our year-on-year

Leadership Index, by 4 percentage points,

to an MPS high of 89% - 10 percentage
points above the external benchmark.

2021 also saw the launch of the
Emerging Senior Leaders Programme
aimed at developing high potential
Medics and Dentists into senior

roles. This programme has received
outstanding initial feedback and has also
strengthened our succession plans.

MADE for Me

2021 saw the introduction of the

MADE for ME global benefits platform
which provides access to remuneration
benefits all in one place. We recognise
that our people have different needs
and therefore providing fixed benefits
without any ability to personalise them
is not condugcive to an inclusive culture.
We have started the journey to improve
the transactional capability on the
platform enabling colleagues to choose
thraughout their career, the benefits
that are most important to them and
their families.

Asense of purpose - helping

The people in my
team, and the line
management I've

59 |

received at MPS has.

been outstanding

The working environment
encourages staff to be their best
selves, the staff are accepting,
helpful, considerate and caring.
You feel part of a team that cares
about its staff and values your
input and contributions

Knowing that what we do makes a difference, | find my work at

N

i the healthcare professions

It definitely has to be the

culture. The efforts putin

by MPS to ensure that their
employees are well taken care

of is just amazing and a first

that | have experienced l

o e A A e

other

L

MPS provide a flexible and safe place towork ]
where employees are encouraged to have a voice.
The benefits and pay compare favourably with

nd the peopl

has always been friendly and relaxed

-

MPS both fascinating and it'savery
i with respect amongst d respect
towards the members we support
The support of my manager

during a difficult time in my life
was amazing. | am privileged to
work with my amazing colleagues.
The pandemic identified that
colleagues are able to work from
home and be productive in their
role. It is great that we are able

to continue working on a hybrid
(g0 to the office once a week)
basis which gives a better work
life batance and being able to take
ownership of my work without
being micro-managed

—_

I enjoy working at MPS as I feel it has a very diverse colleague base, meeting
new people from all different backgrounds is brilliant and something | haven't
experienced as much in other workplaces, the forums that MPS offer is also
like no others that | have experienced, | truly feel there is a place for everyone
at MPS. The benefits that are offered are also very appealing especially with
the addition of the MADE For Me platform

: /
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Members pay subscriptions that go into a central pool.

If they face a complaint, claim, regulatory investigation or
any other matter arising from their professional practice,
members have a right to request assistance from this central

pool. Being member-owned, our default position is to see how

we can help.

Once a request for assistance is approved, our experienced
team of doctors, dentists, lawyers and case managers can
help by offering the right leve! of assistance for a case.

Our starting point is atways *how can we hetp?”

Tremedical and dental landscapes are continually changing and

are rarely ard; d
arise, some of which were inconceivable just a few years ago.

Clinical negligence is a specialist area of expertise and is very
different to areas covered by traditional forms of insurance,
suzhas car or household cover. It can be - and ofteniis -
several years between an incident taking place and the
resulting claim emerging.

MPS is not an insurance company. All the benefits of MPS
i i i . as setoutin 400f
our Memorandum and Articles of Association.

Discretion means we have the flexibility to treat every case
on its individual merit, offering help in unusual circumstances.
or where a new problem appears. It's why we use peopte, not
contracts to make these decisions.

With our ber-fo d jon, decisions
we can assist are made following careful consultation. Qur
experts exercise discretion with the utmost rigour and

fairness, and with the benefit of specialist professional insight.

26 adi ety Limited  Annual Rep Fi

Where our funding
cormes from

2021

How we spend the
member fund

Lrited

2021
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Strategic report
How we operate

Our brands
and principal

activity

Qur principal activity

Healthcare Protection
H

MPS is the world’s leading b d. for-profil
protection organisation for doctors, dentists and healthcare
professionals, with more than 300,000 current members and
130 years of global healthcare experience and expertise. We
o - - o "

Protection is our corporate policy that provides
medical malpractice insurance, established to bring the trusted
MPS brand to insurance through a solution underwritten by
Lloyd's of London, the world's specialist in the insurance and

1sh for i g

p
large corporate healthcare providers.

Ourinternationally recognised risk management training

helps members reduce their risk and protect their careers. All
members have access to a wide range of expertled professional
develepment courses inctuded in their membership. Qur
courses cover a comprehensive range of topics, and many
courses are accredited

Qur brands

Our portfoli i {brands, each catering toa
defined audience and part of a highly
product and service suite. These brands include:

Medical Protection and Dental Protection

market.

Cognitive Institute
Cogpitive Institute’s purpose is to make a difference in
healthcare by equipping leaders, members, clients, and their
teams with non-technical skills to practise safer, more reliable
and kinder healthcare.

The MPS Foundation

The MPS Foundation is a global not-for-profit research initiative.
It aims to shape the future of patient safety through funding
ground-breaking research that makes the world safer for
patients and clinicians, with an emphasis on research whose
findings can be applied in private hospital and outpatient
practice. and dental care environments.

Medical ion and Dental ion provide discretionary QU key markets
indemniity, legal support and protection for doctors, dentists. MPS offers membership in a number of international markets.
and i d the world. i This i ive allows mary

atsoincludes additional benefits such as 24/7 emergency
assistance, wellbeing support and access to our world-class
risk management training.

MPS Partnerships

MPS Partnerships provides bespoke packages for organisations
using our three core services: medical malpractice insurance,
risk prevention and individual indeminity. These solutions enable
healthcare organisations around the world to protect their
organisational financial security and reputation alongside the
careers of their clini 3

practise around the world and still enjoy the benefits of MPS
membership. It also allows MPS to use its wide and diverse
experience for the benefit of all members.

The Medicat Protection Society Limited | Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021
|

* Non-indemnicy dental membarshep.
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Stretegic report
How we operate

2021 operational

performance

Powered by our vision to be the most trusted, expert and
valued protection organisation, we measure our performance

Average monthly member feedback scores achieved
Onascale of 1-7, where 1 represents "Very Poor” and 7

using brand trackers and invest in member-fc d risk
management training,

As a membership organisation, our members have high
ions of us. They expect anil high level

of professional service, not just from us but from every

organisation they deal with. They expect to be able to access

information, systems and services more easily and to receive

accurate information, support and advice from us.

We monitor financial performance using several Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs), including funding levets and
Returnon . These din itin
the Financial performance report on pages 19 to 21 and Our
business modet on pages 26 and 27.

Alongside financial measures of performance, we track
non-financial KPls in relation to member interactions and,
importantly, the member feedback that we receive in relation
to the services we offer. We also routinely survey members
who contact our member administration call centre, our
medicolegal and dentolegal advice lines, as well as those

represents "Excellent”.

2021 200
Member adimiristration 63 63
Medicolegal or dentolegal advice 63 64
Risk prevention workshops . .

* workshopacuvity halted dus tothe pandemic

Member administration

We answered 157,726 calls to our Member Services team

the year (2020: 156,888), 86% of which were answered within
20 seconds (2020: 49%).

Of the 53,643 of items of correspondence received in the year
(2020: 71,692). 93% of routine items were dealt with within
two business days (2020: 69%) and 99% of complex matters
were handled within five business days (2020: 86%), against an
internal benchmark of 90%.

attending risk prevention Ps. their
evaluation of the services provided. We use this feedback to

i and advice
Inrelation to the 8.214 calls received during working hours into

consider how we can continue to improve th

Scoring our performence
Our Brand score

- - - o —— =y

Statement 2021 2020 VoY
Offers good valvie for money 2%  66% 6%
Area provider htrust 97%  95%

Are financially sectre 95%  90% 5%
Has legal and support teaims 95%  93% 2%

o hand that have an extensive
inedicat/dental background

Offers a high level of expertise that 96% 93% 3%
will protect and reassure (e

our medi and advice lines during the year
(2020: 10.432 calls), 86% (2020: 86%). were answered within
20 seconds, outperforming our internal target of 80%.

Member survey feedback on in-house legal services
We survey members who have utilised in-house legal services,
torate the professional support and advice received. Feedback
is also given on a scale of 1-7, again where 1 represents “Very
Poor™ and 7 represents *Excellent”.

p— - R P
2021 2020
Clarity of advice 6.8 68

Ease of colmmunication 6.5 65

Keeping youinformed and updated 67 67

Onr ability tobisten and understand the ssues 6.8 68

Tone/politeness and empathy

Overall satisfaction with the service

The Lined § andFi

2021

Risk Prevention

The COVID pandemic not only disrupted healthcare, but it
turned onits head the way our members think about and
undertake professional education. With scientific annual
college conferences the mainstay, and for MPS our face-toface
workshops, COVID continued to force a shift to digital tearning
and virtual events. But like telemedicine, these changes.

are here to stay, challenging long-held education practices
and preferences by clinicians around the world, and in doing
50 seeing the latent opportunity of technology platforms
transforming forever how our members interact, stay up to
date and took for solutions to their professional challenges.

MPS is adapting and changing in this new environment to meet
member needs. and to take advantage of the cost savings.
andi iacy that presents.

MPS's 2021 Risk Prevention programme mirrored our
approach undertaken in 2020, with outbreaks, member
concerns and demands on healthcare professionals meaning
no face-to-face workshops were held around the world. In
many countries activity was attempted to be planned, but as
scon as the opportunity presented to host responsibly, local
challenges re-emerged.

However, in 2021, we piloted and launched our first ever, highly
interactive virtual workshops, adapted from our longstanding
face-to-face Mastering series. A testimony to the quality and
professionalism of MPS risk prevention, members rated these
virtual workshops just as highly as they bave their face-to-face
equivalents, Virtual workshops will be offered to all members
around the world and presenting even more accessibility and
convenience, particutarty for those in regional and remote areas.

More than 30,000 members participated in the webinar

which inued to focus on it isil om
COVID. This number is less than 2020 participation, and most
likely attributable to members reporting *zoom fatigue”,
burnout, and with some members being offered deferral or
relief from CME/CPD compliance by their professional bodies.
Members were supported with key issues emerging from
COVID impacts, including:

teleconsulting

burnout and resilience for members and their
support of colleagues

managing COVID related adverse incidents
medicolegal issues arising from withholding or
withdrawing treatment

rights and responsibilities of doctors arising from
vaccinations, including seeing unvaccinated patients
high risk colleague interactions conducted by
videoconference and telephone.

Risk Prevention also produced an insightful and highly praised
report on Irish GP risk, with more than 1,000 visits to MPS's
report site.

We expanded our support of members in hospitals and
practices in the UK and Caribbean, defivering programmes
from our specialist healthcare improvement company,
Cognitive Institute. The Institute also secured accreditation
from Harvard Medical Institution’s risk management arm
CRICO. to deliver under licence its safety audit for client
hospitals and practices.

The Medical Protection Society Linniter! ‘ Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021 1 31
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1feel Dental Protection is

one of the best. In those

stressful times [ feel i

assured that [the] service |

will get is second to none. |

intend to practice ina way

[ that)dontthave touseit
butit's a safety net

Thank you for always being
there when ! have needed you

Whilst | did not tike the advice you
gave me [it] does not mean you are
wrong :-) You are a valuable sounding
board for potential problems and an
ally when things go wrang. Thank you
for having my back

Excellent service. So glad I stayed
with Medical Protection when other
options kept asking me to move

Dental protection staff have always been

very helpful and calming in times of great
stress. They have held my hand through cases,
written letters and given good advice when
my stress levels have been through the ceiling,
and | have been unable to think straight

Excellent support
& communication
wrapped upin

human kindness

™~NJ
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How we cperate

Sectionll72(1) statement]

Members of the Council have considered their duty to promote the success of MPS for the benefit of;
its members as a whole’and in doing so have had regard to other relevant stakeholdersYin accordance,
with the Companies'Act 2006 Section 172(1)‘ S outlined on page 463

Key decisions made by the Council and its subzcommittees are included on pages 43 t0 48]

takeholder group’ \Why it is important to engage \Ways weengage,

i
[How we ensure we'are doing thiswell

Furtherdetails

[hoigkey interest]

[Members] Understanding members’ needs allows us to deliver, LRMPS website
relevant products and servicesyrstaln membersang °
attract newones It also Helps Us toldentify opportunities
EacLe = i op0 PR ieticordentolegal advice
°
LY ~PS presence at events
o

RIS DrevEnTiOn Workshops webinars and
JorinFrodalés)
.

ERManager1-2-15°

LR intranet Zincluding discussions, blogs, news
bSocial pagesand Activities!
B S Teams channels)

CEO briefing sessions and sessions with Exec.

s 0 o

interacting with colieagues IS one of the main ways in which

EIMbers expenence the MPS brand, Our colleagues are

Hindamental to the AChTey emant of oUr Mermber SXperence,
2 e chievement. ol

|

. o
o (A
o revars sCherm)
o CIEFOPEEEER
© EEBAIEEEEED

o WA

° (ETREAELIFIED

o Gl IBRETTRIRTRITS

°© R

o QIR TSR
o CRRIRHRERAES

Partnerorganisations QWorking with partners (eg panellaw firms and associations) [HReavlar engagement via RS operational )
Ehd Suppliers ERbIES (S o delver,core MDS Services 1o membersyThe 5Usie5s developmentyCiaims delivery: and,

& e 5 [0 member.
elivery OF HEGUAILLy Services and EHe 1P brand felies) g
Seavily on these Services belng providad o st e ngaBemenLmade L iffering across countries)
Pdepending O thEServices provided S the,

IRaLUTE Of the relationship

EYCorrespondence and feedback
EYMember research and Satisfaction surveys)

PR iracking engagement scores and content analytics SR Value for money)
EY Monitoring member movements

PYAssessing complaints,

LR Member experience ambassadors)

W

Interal communications function

Communications Strategy and plans to SUpport
Khange projel

°
-

X Annual survely and twicesvearty pulse survey] PR Tre g 20 development] gewrglofthe
BY Leadership fmmework! values: talent managementy ounct

2

core behaviotrs and pesformance bonuses'
Nt Forum.

ofatis!
€ Engageme
.

Employe

2dDACK (TOIT
o1iTagUE Tl SUPPOTE NEEWOTK

4w

PENew cantracts ona global basis to create more,

it giies LAl

Consistency i control,Teporting and Governancey

EJ0esignated relationship managers responsible for
[panei performance)
B .

b: omDiversity & Inclusion Forumand,
I

LA £ xpertise and quality of customer senvice, Supparting
rieim5ers

XA vailability and ease of access to services)

Reportof the
S

—r
=

By Being here for members)
Py Career opportunities'
PYHeaih anG welbeing

By Pay and conaitions
LY Reward and recognition
PYColeague engogement]

I

°

]
v
i
W

uality of services
oglstical efficlencies and vatve for mone:
haring insights and expertise;

@00
2

'Governments and, Rolicies and regulatory changes introduced by gover LR Regular meetings with officlais)
BuBlicBodies] rVIdE OPROTtUnities 41d POSESKS to DU Operstions) o RNy
\WGriing closely With Governiments enables Us (o dentify) iavelopents
CRIng lOSE Wi GEvemiments e iy

S Taflueice potential Changes oS vell 55 ensticS that Gud e et
B7OTCES Bd SarVices Evolve] [ Campaigning o key issues

Rl OnehIpS TAIth State run schemes and other bodies are JEIRLYIOD Loing local developments
falso important!

LR DIrect engagement with corporates throughy
targeted pipeliie approach

o

PY 1S Partnerships

[Healthcare providers JKES provides risk prevention and protection services to
heatthcare providersy

Vvlnrkmgxt_x(h healthcare D,'°_V}_GEVS enables’ u_s.tn_l:leake

I Getter (Mderstanding of developgients in healthcard)

Kistivery, thair lKely impact on.our (nembers and therr
e . ATy

°

°
focused colleagues)

.

o

LY Costs of Ciinical negligence, m
XPErtise o Medicologal and dentolegalissues P O €5sions]

vality Of member service

Py 5sUs facing the professions)

° o

1

LY Quality and price of indeninity services Supporting the;
PY Risk assessment and management| proféssions)

Py UnGerstanding issues facing membersand

hiealthcare Systems.

|

F22 QiR h: Medical Protction Society Lirted JifAnnual Report and Financial Statements 2021)
] l
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How we operaite

Stakeholder group \Why it isimportant toengage

o]

\Theirkey interestsy [Furtherdetails)

WIth PrOTeSSIONS| Odies (Colleges SOcieties and.
anians) enables 14PS to influence the wider debate o jssu
liked 0 GumwOrkIE 3150 enables U t0 Bettertimderstand
U membership’s Interestsy

Professionat bodies)

[Professionall Working with professional regulators enables Us to)

nALiEnCe the way I which they reg late pur Iermbers forj
regulators: 3

the benefit of our membership)

ovides MPS with
agement Wit the media provide
8 titi-¢hdnnel Exposure to connect with embers

T wider stakenolder audiencelit 15 also crucial to

Patientsiand By assisting members with clinical negligence claims, we;
[the public Io18Y an IMpOrtant rolé In patients receiviiig Cornpensation]

AT hrough our work to help members manage their risk, we)

E¥Regularscheduled meetings)
PYSDeaking ot and Sttenaing stakeholger events)
PR COlab0ratvE woring On Key Ssues

Reguiar scheduled Meetings

Attending e

Pratecting members before the regulator)

Vents’
S5UE press releases and provide]
féatires: blogsand Tang diSmnas to ke,
Bublications regutarty]
By issue stateinents on behalf of members'
DIREED

Py Meetmgs with joumalists
EYPre-empt and prepare for nsks to reputation’
°

(Media and social media

o
o
°
a

PYCorporate Soclal Respansibllity Commattee

e S e
alsoplay an important role i improving patient care and,
patient experience)

'Communities'and We aim to be a sustainable business and recognISe; il

K Reenvronment] (GGt FesPonsIDiity L0 the Communities Inwhich ot
members operate] e

34 p Wmﬁmﬂ;ﬂ“ PAnnual Repart and Financial Statements 2021

P S PO ol teEr g OayS FonthE NeslthCare
Drofession an for MPS Totlcagues)

[Y Ethicalinvestment strategy (ESG)}
By Carbon enssion reporting and responsible,
K GREmptionTTITIative

PR ReCycung older technology)

By A ifordability of indennity/costs of clinical Supparting the
e igence] proféssions]

BY e >5ertise on medicolegal and dentolegal issues

Py Stakeholoer Mopping in each major market)

LY Quality of member service]
L35 ioport froin inscountry advisersy EY S5uesTacing the professionsy

- R e———

Y Fair and efficlent regutatory processes’

BYtiedica Diredtor, Dental Directorand country,
edical/dental I€ads
BRKPIs based on coverage i
Inarkets in comparisos

n key publications in priority BEY Diverse and quality content that s celevant to
10 Thain COMPELItrS thET Budience

°
EEAccurate and timely information’
4 BYExpert advice
<

Patient care and patient safety;
Y Compensation]

B Corporate Social Responsibily Committee P sUstainable investing Sipporting oury
SStablishEd thTaentiy and momtor Fiatives) o CHD D Pearomuniticsand
LY Supporting local community initiatives, CIEEEE
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Our risks and

Principal risks

As an organisation, we are not prepared to knowingly. or
willingly, take risks which will result in member detriment,
regulatory censure, and/or unexpected loss (or gain), both
financial and non-financial (eg reputational).

Risk Description

Strategic risk. The risk that we fail to achieve our buss

However, in pursuing our business strategy and objectives, MPS
is inevitably exposed to various risks. Given the nature of our
business, we identify our principal risks, including how we seek
to manage them as follows:

igation

We moIitor our @iIvIKonient S0 that we anticipate

objectives and this could impact the |

n andresp far
s

or other

Financial risk

The nisk arising from inadequate nicome. cash flow

. insight into our fiture
strategic planning.

dent capital undity profile to

or capital to meet current or future obligations and ensure a robust financial position is iaintaed.

deliver a sustainable busiess

Underwritingrisk

The risk of loss or adverse changes in the vale

We enstire that our tinderwnting is balanced and
il a

of provisions d o
provisioning assumptions

Operational risk

The sisk arising from inadequate or failed internal

13 of business
igher risk, or loss making over

wol
that is volatite, hi;
the long-term.

We put in controls to manage our operational losses.

processes. people or systemns or from exterial events  reputational events, or failires toneet regutatory

Conduct risk The risk arising

. We act i g
tigate these.

We have a brsiness continity process to ensure
we have plans and resources to it disruption
to our services and negative npact to mernbers,
colleagues and the wider busniess.

membership, or other stakeholders

Fail to b odels and d "

deliver appropriate and consistent outcomes forour  and sales practices which deliver fair inember

outcornes and meet or iernber needs.

Compliance risk The nsk arising to comply 3 t
new legislati the i i P h th
which MPS operates all relevant regufation and legistation.

People risk The nisk ansing froim the failie to appropriately We lead responsibly by having the nght capabilities,

recruit, retain and manage the perforrmance

of colieagues

inanaging onr people resource effectively. developing
colleague talent and having cofleagyies who feel
engaged and connected.

36 The Medical Protection Society Lunited * Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021

Man mna o rists

We have a risk management framework to ensure we
understand the risks we run in the pursuit of our business.
strategy and objectives, and that we have appropriate controls
in place to manage our risks.

Our risk strategy is aligned to our Group strategy with the
understanding and managing of our risks being a key aspect
of our strategic planning processes. Our fisk strategy supports
our ambition to be MADE for Members - helping us achieve
sustainable growth and placing our members at the heart of
everything we do.

Risk Governance

The Council sets our risk appetite and risk framework on an

annual basis and has established a ‘Three Lines of Defence’ risk
model ffective between

risk management (1st Line), risk oversight (2nd Line) and risk

assurance (3rd Line).

At each scheduled meeting, the Audit and Risk Committee
(the Committee), as the delegated authority for the Council.
receives a report from the Executive Director of Risk &
Compliance which provides an overview and assessment of the
Group's risk profite. This report is informed by quarterly risk and
control self-assessments carried out with the business areas
and the MPS Group Risk Register.

The Committee also receives updates from the Executive
Director of Risk & Compliance on the key activities being
undertaken to further embed risk management across MPS
and signs-off the Group Compliance Monitoring Plan.

The Committee reviews the arrangements by which colleagues

may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties
i ing) and has i access to

to help discharge its duties. The Chair of the Committee meets

privately with the Executive Director of Risk & Compliance

during the year,

The MPS governance structure is set out in detail in our
of corp
pages 40and 41.

Risk management strategy and framework

To enable us to manage the business with the necessary
understanding of our risks and controls we have a risk
management strategy and framewaork which includes:

Risk Vision - to actively identify, understand and manage
our risks responsibly and effectively, to enable MPS to
deliver sustainable growth within risk appetite

Risk Aware Culture - fostering the need for transparency
of aur risks, acknowledging that we are not immune from
risk and we need to be responsive to our risks, adhering

to the rules and not acting to benefit ourselves to the
detriment of the wider organisation

Risk Appetite - articulating the level of risk we are
prepared to take to meet our objectives, and measured by
key risk indicators

Risk and Policies - which

articulate our approach to risk management

Risk Universe ~ our key risk categories through which all
our risk processes such as assessment, aggregation and
reporting must align

Risk Management Processes and Controls — our risks.
are controlled end-to-end with key business processes
mapped. effective outcomes and quality assurance; and
clear escalation routes and reporting.

The Medical Protection Society Limited  Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021
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Strategic report
How we operate

Future

developments

We are always locking ahead while continually providing value
for our members and clients. Our five-year vision focuses on our
members, people and data.

Improving our ability to retain and acquire members
globally to feed sustainable growth.

Strengthening our financial position and security for
members while enhancing our reputation.
Expanding our Corporate Insurance offering through
Healthcare Protection and Corporate Discretionary
support through MPS Partnerships.

The Chief Executive’s and Financlal performance reports
refer to key initiatives during the year and touch on future

a policy of insurance for clinical negligence risks, we will be
ina strong position to offer this as a berefit of membership,
alongside the other important membership benefits we offer,
such as advice and support.

We also need to be prepared for the possibility that market
forces overwhelmingly require us to offer insurance in existing
countries of MPS business, outside the UK, and we need to

be poised to enter new countries with an insurance offering
where local conditions or regulation so require. With all this in
mind, we are initiating a significant programme to prepare for
insurance, including the development of our products, systems
and processes.

developmentsin specific areas. Below is a yof
those plans:

covio

We continue to monitor developments in each region and

do all we can to support members ~ from offering flexible
membership options for those with reduced incomes, to
providing timely advice on the latest guidance from respective
governments and regulatory bodies worldwide and extending

PP lofthe Report

Pages 26 to 38 of the Annual Report form the Strategic Report.

The Strategic Report was approved by the Council on 20 April
2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Do Wser

fits as new and risks arise. We al paign for
legal for healthcare pr to help reduce
the burden of anxiety they carry when caring for their patients.

Regulation
We continue to work with the UK Government on their
propoesal to regulate professional indemnity, contributing our
knowledge and experience to ensure that members’ needs
remain at the forefront of any decisions made. We are proud
of the high level of service we have provided members for
over 130 years and are committed to maintaining the highest
possible standards, should there be a mandatory change

to our business in the UK. We await the decision from the
consultation, which was published in late 2018.

Insurance
In 2019, MPS began to offer insurance to corporate
healthcare providers in the UK, which requires many aspects
of our business to comply with insurance regulations. We
are committed to continuing to offer individual members
discretionary indemnity. However, it may become a

i for p i insome
to purchase regulated indemnity cover, which we expect to
be a poticy of insurance, in the next few years. Should the UK
Government decide that doctors and dentists need to hold

The Megical

David Wheeler
Company Secretary

2021
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Report of

the Councd

The Council, which for the purposes of the Companies Act
2006 is the Board of Directors, presents its Annual Report for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

The following disclosures have been included elsewhere
within the Annual Report and Financial Statements and are
incorporated into the Report of the Council by reference:

Disclosures Pages

Financial mstruments 76

Financial risk inanagernent 7778

Future developinents. 38

Equal opportimities 23

Employees 64
The role of the Council

The Council's principal focus is the overall strategic direction,
development and control of the MPS Group. In addition, it.

s ultimately responsible for the exercising of discretion in
response to requests for assistance. In practice, subject to

The Council agrees the Group’s corporate governance
framework, as part of which it has empowered the main
management committee, the Executive Committee, whichis
responsible for day-to-day operations.

The roles of the Chair and Chief Executive are documented and
the Chair, together with the Chief Executive and the Company
Secretary, is responsible for ensuring that the Councilis kept
fully informed and is consulted on issues that are reserved to it
and that decisions are made in a timely manner.

Newly appointed members of the Council are given an
induction appropriate to their level of previous experience.

Members of ths Council
The names of the members of the Council of MPS who served
during the year are set out on page 39.

of corp governance i
In the running of its business, MPS seeks to ensure a level of
governance appropriate to the size and nature of the Group
and to incorporate appropriate best practice. MPS adopts and
reports in ling with the Wates Corporate Governance Principles
for Large Companies (“the Wates Principles”).

reporting, oversight and review by the Council, this is delegated  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Council has

to the Executive Committee and the senior management tearn. the practi

In support of the Group strategy. the Council approves the
Group’s Values, strategic plans. annual budget and overall
system of risk identification, management and internal
controls. The Councilis also responsible for the Group’s
operating and financial performance.

FMPS and it

that MPS's governance structure and its approach to
corporate governance is in accordance with the six guiding
principles which underpin the Wates Principles. These are
detailed opposite:

40 The Medical Protection Socwty Lunited - Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021

Application of the Wates Principles to MPS

Principle Requirement How MPS has complied
Py d fe Board devels d promotes Ouwr Purpose ~ to protect the careers, repuitationss and fmancnal
leadership pose of a cornpany, and secrrity of doctars, dentist:
|l$values strategy and culture align wlth the wodd was tewewed by the Council in 2021. The Conneil
that pirpose. that M strategy and
cultuire align with that. p\ irpose. MPS has explained its purpose
and values to 1ts colleaguies through Chief Executive briefings
and other channets and pronm:es adherence to our Values
throghit MPS also
te througt g11e engag surveysand
throngh Col ninittee feedback sessions.
During 2021, the Cotmnert contmued to proinote the MADE for
desgned .
growth for MPS.
Board F fa The Ce il
i Board hair and a ther “skilt
balarice of skills, backgroinds, expenence and knowledge, ouncil bes
i i irectors pacity to 1nake avaliiable contribution.
bhaving sufficient capacity to imake a
valuable contribtion. The size of a Cowcil i jority of medic:
Board sharild be grided by the scale and vh Di
complexity of the company. relevant to our busmess operations.
The Chair i Vice Chair. thuss facilitati 2
refevant bt dvergent backgrounds.
See i rt on page 46 for fiirther

ABoard and " \dw\d\va[ D-rectors shm l\d

Director
responsibilities have a clear uinderstanding of their

D‘ g 2021, [he Cm ncil revlewed its terms nf reference and

those of its sub-cormimittees, to ensure alt Comnicil members

acc y The therr Lability and that
Board's policies and Coumcil's policies and L eff Secisi
support effective df 0l d ki challenge.

independent challenge.

A promote the |
sustamable success of the company by
identifying opport nities to create and

and risk

The Council reviewed MPS's MADE for Members strategy to
2025 atits annual strategy day i 2021, to identify opportinnties
for MPS to create and preserve fong-tenn value and to oversee

preserve valiie ai

for the ider mﬁcanc« rand mitigation of risks.

A proinote Executive
renimeration structures aligned to
thelong-term sustainable success of a
coinpany, taking into account pay and
conditions elsewhere i1 the company.

Stakeholder Directors should foster effective
i ligned

engagement the compary's purpose. The Board is

igation ofrisks.

Cou Oirector
during 2021 to ensure that they were aligned to the long-
termsustainable success of MPS, taking into accomit pay ang
conditions elsewhere withiny MPS.

See the Remuneration report on pages 45 to 46 for
further information.

The Conmgil
ensure that they are effemve and aligned to the Coinpany’s
prirpose. The COul ©cil has given die regard to stakeholders’ views

overseeng
engagement with stakeholders, mcluding
the workforce. and having regard to therr
views when taking decisions.

— for further mformation on this see
thes172(1) Slale: nent on page 46.
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Report of the Council

The following sections provide details of MPS's governance.

The Council

The Council i f a Non-E: hair, 15
other Non-Executive Directors and one Executive Director, who
is the Chief Executive. The role of Non-Executive Vice-Chair
remains vacant. MPS's constitution requires that the Chair and
the majority of Council members be Medical or Dentat members
of MPS.

Ofthe Non-Executive Directors (including the Chair), ten
benefit from Medical or Dental Protection membership as at 31
December 2021. All of the Non-Executive Directors (including
the Chair) are considered to be independent. The Non-
Executive Directors who are not a Medical or Dental Protection
member have no financial interest in MPS other than the fees
they receive as members of the Council. The Non-Executives
who are Medical or Dental Protection members receive fees as

members of the Council. Their personal membership of MPS is
not considered to compromise their 3
MPS continues to u fthei

of its Non-Executive Directors and to provide appropriate

guidetines for all Directors on their ethical conduct as a Director

of MPS. To this end. MPS has, for MPS and its subsidiary Boards,
a register of i d also publish: aCode of

Member of

Ethical Conduct for all staff, which applies equally to members
of the Council. MPS has separate posts of Chair and Chief
Executive to differentiate the running of the Council from the
executive responsibility for the running of the business.

The Council considers that the Non-Executive members of the

Council,as a group, are of sufficient calibre and number to bring

strength and independence to the Council.

All Council members, except for the Chief Executive and the
Chair of Dental Protection Limited, if not initially appointed at
a general meeting, are subject to election by members at the
first general meeting following their appointment. In addition
one third of the Council (again except the Chief Executive and
the Chair of Dental Protection Limited) must retire at each
general meeti if willing, eligible and led by
Council, may offer themselves for re-election.

The Chief Executive is appointed by the Council and can

be removed by the Council. The Council betieves that not
subjecting the Chief Executive to re-election does not
compromise the independence or integrity of the Council. The
Chair of Dental Protection Limited is a member of the Council
ex officio. They are appointed to both the Dental Protection
Limited Board, together with their fellow Directors of Dentat
Protection, and the post of Chair, by the Council of MPS. Non-

Executive members of the Council usually serve for a maximum

of eight full years from the date of election by the membership.

The Council met formally five times during 2021. The
attendance record of members of the Council at the five
meetings is shown in the table opposite (eligible meetings for
attendance shown in brackets):

1 Prot Sacrety Linited tand Fi

Apponted Reured mber of
the Counel meetings attended
021 2020
Richard Brennan S5 56
FionaComish o ) w©®  sE
ey T osm s
simonKayl sE 5
[—— Retired 31 March 2021 W5
f— e
pe—— - o sm
P—— P N
P P — T
Gaseottan D omesimezoz -
Smonpasty heiieazs sne 2021 56 SE)
P s& 1
[eere—— © 5o
Alexander Seott 55 56
sy T T e
56 56
eetman T e
Tomweiaman T e e
Cotunvorgson T e w

The Council has a schedule of matters specifically reserved
toit for decision, including strategy, financial policy and
major acquisitions and disposals. All Council members have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
and procedures exist for any member of the Councit to take
independent advice at MPS's expense.

Non-Executive members of the Council met on occasions
during the year without the executive members. There is also
the provision for the Non-Executive members to meet without
the Chair.

Activities in the year
During the year, the Council has:

Reviewed the Group’s strategy (MADE for Members).
Reviewed and approved strategc transactions.
Reviewed and approved the budget for the next financial year.
Reviewed and approved the tax strategy for the Group.
Reviewed the financial performance of the Group on a
quarterly basis.

Approved the Annual Report and Financial Statements.
- Approved the subsidiary financial statements.
Approved policy statements. including Modern Slavery.
Reviewed the governance structure and activities of the
sub-committees of the Council.

« Reviewed competitor analysis.

Council evaluation
The Council undertakes an evaluation of its performance
in each financial year. To date, this has been based upon a

2021

questionnaire and Council members have an individual review
with the Chair on performance issues. The results of the most
recent evaluation have been reported to the Council by the
Chair, reviewed and discussed.

Linstock. board performance consultants, carried out an
independent review of the Council's effectiveness in early 2020.
The results of this review were presented in September. and
the Council was satisfied that it functioned effectively during
the review period.

Internal control

The Council has overall responsibility for MPS's system of
internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness, whilst
the role of management is to implement the Council’s policies
on risk and control. MPS has an Executive Director of Risk &
Comli

Committee

‘Schaduled maatings

Council March, Apa, June, September and December

Assetand Latility

Audet andRisk

Febrary, May, September, Noveraber and
December

April. une, September and Novernber

Medical ‘March. fune and September

M

February,

In addition, the separate Board of Dental Protection Limited,
comprising a majority of Non-Executive dental practitioners,
et four times to consider issues affecting the dental

e, ible for fostering a ber-focused and
appropriate risk culture across the business which supports
the delivery of financial security of our membership fund, The
Executive Director of Risk & Compliance also reports into the
Audit and Risk Committee. The system of internal controls is
designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to
achieve the business objectives. In pursuing these objectives,
internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Thereisa process for identifying, and
managing the significant risks faced by MPS. This has beenin
place for the full financial year and up to the date of approval
of the Annual Report and Financial Statements. The process
involves the undertaking of regular reviews at departmental
and corporate level. From these reviews, management
identifies the key risks and determines their significance, based
on the likelihood of each risk occurring and the potential impact
on MPSif it were to do so. Management then determines what
action can be taken, cost-effectively.

The Council has de d the functic i itoring the
effectiveness of the system of internal control and of the risk
managernent process to the Audit and Risk Committee. See the
“Audit and Risk Committee’ section below for more detail.

The Council recogrises the need to regularly review and

and dental members.

For details on the Remuneration and Nominations Committee,
see pages 45 to 46.

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee was chaired by Simon Pashby,
until June of 2021, then Stuart Purdy, from June 2021 onwards,
and met five times in the year. MPS’s external auditors, Chair,
Chief Executive, Executive Director of Finance, Executive
Director of Risk & Compliance and internat auditors also attend
the meetings. In addition, as part of the planned handover pnor
to joining the Council. Stuart Purdy attended two meetings,
beginning in September 2020. The Committee meets with
internal audit and the external auditor at least annually without
management present. Other senior managers may attend for
specific agenda items at the request of the Committee.

As noted above. the Audit and Risk Committee reviews, on
behalfof the Council, the adequacy and effectiveness of risk
management and control systems, and oversees the work of
internal audit and considers their reports.

The Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee reports outcomes of
its meetings to the Council and the Council receives the minutes
ofallthese meetings.

monitor the appropriateness of its approach to
the systems of risk management and control operated at

MPS. With this in mind, the Council has continued to adapt its
approach during the year to take into account the economic.
climate of recent years, the revisions and ongoing consultations
relating to corporate governance standards and guidance, such
as the Wates Code for large private comparies, and relevant
FRC guidance on key risks such as such as going concern and
liquidity. The Council, through the Audit and Risk Committee,
maintains focus on the many facets of risk management and
reviews key risks and their mitigating controls at least annually.

Committees of the Council
The Council has several sub-committees. These are the Audit

to the Council, the Audit and

Risk Committee:

Discusses with internal audit a plan of work each year,
agrees the resource commitment and reviews findings of
their work.

Discusses with the external auditor their audit approach
and agrees any particular aspect of internal control or
risk management to be reviewed by them beyond their
statutory responsibilities.

Discusses with MPS in-house actuaries their approach to
statistical reserving of reported claims and potential claims
that have yet to be reported and, in conjunction with the
Asset and Liability Committee, determine procedures for an

and Risk Comrmittee,

Oversight C: peer review by ies.
Asset and Liability Committee, Medical Committee, and + Considers the results of the external auditor’s work with
Remuneration and Nominations Committee. The members of them and with management.

these Committees are listed on page 39. The Committees met
inaccordance with the following schedute:

The Medical Protection Society Linuted ' Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021

Reviews the quarterly reports from the Executive Director
of Risk & Compliance.
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Report of the Council

« Initiates as necessary and considers reports from
management on systems of internal control and on the
effectiveness of risk management.

Reports the results of its work, with any necessary
recommendations, to the Council and ensures that actions
required by the Council are implemented. One such report
is made at the year end before producing this statement.

Considered the requirements and impact of new
accounting standards during the year.

Completed a full tender process for selection of new
external auditors.

Management Oversight Committee
The Management Oversight Committee is chaired by a
Non-Executive member of the Council, Alexander Scott.

MPS engages the services of KPMG to provide ani i audit

The C is for ing all aspects of

function, whose responsibilities includs iding. C
over a wide range of issues including financial, corporate and
operational risks. Assurance is provided through reporting
and the provision of opinion following a range of monitoring
activities, discussion and review. The internal audit function is
independent from all operational departments and its work is
overseen and co-ordinated by the Audit and Risk Committee.
The Committee receives summaries of all internal audit
reports, is involved in approving the annual internal audit plan
and is able to question the internal auditors about their work at
each Committee meeting. The Committee also monitors and,
where appropriate, challenges management’s timely progress
in the clearance of agreed audit recommendations.

The Audit and Risk Committee also reviews the scope and
results of the external audit, its quality, effectiveness and value-
for-money. as well as the independence and objectivity of the
auditors. The Committee has a written policy on ensuring the
inued indept e of ditors, which includes
requiring the auditors to make a statement on their continued
independence, placing limits on the amount of non-audit work
undertaken by the auditors and having a policy covering the
ccommissioning of non-audit services from the auditors.

In addition, the Committee also receives referrals for ethical
guidance. provides oversight of MPS's anti-bribery and

ion policies, has lity for the ‘anti-briby
risk assessment including the risk of management override of
controls, and has oversight of the whistlebtowing policy. It also
reviews, prior to publication, the annuat financial statements
and the other information included in the Annual Report and
Financial Statements.

Activities in the year
During the year. the Audit and Risk Committee has:

Considered the appropriateness of the Group's Annual
Report and Financial Statements.

Understood key judgements made by management in
respect of the Group's financial statements.

Assessed the outcomes/findings of work performed by the
external auditor.

Considered the effectiveness of the internal controls and

MPS's day-to-day busin . where such operati
are not otherwise covered by other Council committees or
subsidiary Boards.

Activities in the year
During the year, the Management Oversight Committee has:

- Reviewed the financial performance of the Groupona
quarterly basis.

+ Reviewed any changes to the approved budget for approval by
the Council.

- Considered analysis on the membership. including member

movements, membership subscription pricing and claims

and cases.

Reviewed key people metrics.

- Received updates on key strategic projects.

- Reviewed the performance of the Group against the
corporate objectives.

Asset and Liability Committee

The Asset and Liability Committee is chaired by a Non-
Executive member of the Council, Michael Urmston. The
Committee oversees MPS's investment strategy, quantification
of reserves and its capital position. The members of the
Committee are the members of the Board of MPI (London)
Limited (MPI), and via this common membership, jointly
manage the Group's investment portfolio.

Activities in the year
During the year, the Asset and Lial

ity Committee has:

Reviewed quarterly investment performance of the Group.
Received and reviewed the Group's investment strategy.
Received updates on the Group’s capital modelling.
Reviewed liquidity and rebalancing.

Considered funding updates on a quarterly basis.
Reviewed the assumptions for claims reserves and reports
on the provisions.

Approved the claims reserving policy.

Medical Committee
The Medical Committee is chaired by a Non-Executive
member of the Council, James McLenachan. The Medical

the work of internal audit and discussed key risks

in more detail on pages 36 and 37).

Considered reports produced by internal audit.

Reviewed the risk management process and the process for

C i advises the Council on developments within
medicine, sharing experience which may impact on MPS and
the membership of its Medical members. This Committee also
advises the Council on engagement with Medical members,
their i d needs.

‘which the risk strategy and appetite i
Recommended the tax strategy for approvat by the Council.
Reviewed key accounting policies for the Group and
accounting for major transactions during the year.
Monitored compliance with the Wates Principles of corporate

licabl

& d reporting

Dental Board

The Board of the wholly d subsidiary Dental

Limited is chaired by a Non-Executive member of the Council,
Callum Youngson. The Board serves MPS by providing equivalent

3 i Linted ' Annuat Repo:

2021

v and sharing
‘which may impact on MPS and the membership of its Dental
members. This Board also advises the Council on engagement
with Dental members, their issues and needs.

and Nominations
Information on the Committee’s purpose and activities in the
year can be found in the following Remuneration report.

Remuneration report

The Remuneration and Nominations Comimittee is chaired by
aNon-Executive member of the Council, Salty Scutt and met.
three times in 2021.

Qur President, Professor Dame Jane Dacre, the Chief Executive
and the Executive Director of People and Culture were also in
attendance at the meetings. The Chief Executive takes no part
in discussi ing his own ion.

In June 2021, Suzy Lishman resigned and Simon Pashby retired
from Council, with David Roytowski succeeding Suzy Lishman
on the Committee from September 2021,

The Committee is responsible for:

Recommending to the Council the overarching principles
and parameters of the remuneration policy of MPS and
overseeing the operation of a reward approach in line with
these principles.

Establishing the salary and performance reward of the
Executive members of the Council. and for reviewing

Gender Pay reports for the last five years can be found at
medicalprotection.org/genderpay.

Remuneration paid

Directors’ emoluments

The standard remuneration for all Non-Executive members

of the Council (other than the Chair) remained the same at
£27.600 (2020: £27.600). Most Non-Executive members of
the Council also received fees for appointments to various
Boards and Committees. The President of the Council received
afee of £36.000 (2020: 36,000). Details of Council member
appointments can be found on page 39.

The total fees payable to all members of the Council are
set out below:

Saays D OB BEN Tt
rees 000
€000

Exocutivemembars

Simon Kayll (Chef Executive) 385 14 58 68 58 572
Howard Kew (Executve Drector retiod 5P 3 60 9 123 314
31 Mareh 2021)

Non-Exacutivemembers

o0 Eardley (Chair o Gounchy s - . e e

Richard Brennan 36 - . < 6 7
Fiona Comish o o 36 - h - o7 36 36
Suzylisman(esgred 3 e 202 18 - - - 19 36
Jarnes McLenachan (Chair of Medkcal a2 - . - a2 - a2
Commitiee)

Simon Pashiy (reured 23 June 2021) 76
Stuart Purdy (Chai of Audit and @ . o 7 @ on
Risk Commttee)

David Roytowski ES)

the salary and performance reward proposals of other
Executives who are not members of the Council. NexanderScott (Chav of Management . 47 - - . a1 a8
+ Overseeing the effectiveness, capabillty and development ~ Oversight Committec) .
of the Council and its members and for approving the Sally Scutt (Chair of Remunerationand 47 - - - a7 a7
remuneration of the Council. its Committees and sub- o o) e e e« = o —
Committees. Granamstokes w0 LT w T
+ Succession planning for the Council and its C¢ e Thomas (ice Chat of LI
and ensuring the right batance, structure and composition o . [— -
of the Council and its and for N MchelUmsion(Charof Assetand @7 - . . a7 a7
new Council appoi and appoi toSUBSIBIETY 1o ecman w0 - - - w
Boards and Committees.
Gallum Youngson Char of @ . . . a5
3 . Dental Board)
" i C e et e e e =
Rermuncration policy ‘Meghana Pandit (Appointed 1 no . - R 1
MPS seeks to apply a remuneration policy appropriate for a September 2021) L L
mutuat society. The principles that guide our i 1 P PO
September 2021

policy are:

alignment to the business strategy and goals
fair and equitable offering

transparent with our reward

. ible to all through flexible delivery
differentiation for performance

competitive in the market.

In February 2022, MPS published information on gender pay as
of 5 April 2021. including bonus paid by gender based on the
preceding 12-month period to 5 April 2021, it is important to
stress that a gender pay differential or “gap” is not the same
as pay inequality and we are confident that our colleagues

are paid equally for doing equivalent jobs. Details of our

1027 7 18 77 1239 15

Koy

)
andiazabie experses.
R

N
altemative arrangoments

Note:
1

fer the

celevant

of leawng.
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During 2021, no Executive members of the Council (2020: none)
were members of MPS's defined benefit pension scheme, details
of which are set out in note 9 of the financial statements. During
the same period. no members of the Council (2020: none) were
members of the defined contribution pension scheme.

In addition, ten (2020: nine) Non-Executive members of the
Council had personal membership of MPS,

Name. In-Year 2021 Payable  Deferred 2021 Payment
£000 (Potentially payable
202510 2028)
Simon Kayll Chief Executive) 58 58

Non-Executive members of the Councit
The remuneration of the members of the Council was reviewed
as part of the 2021 annual pay review. Recognising the
difficult year that members globally had experienced thiough

ic on botha and personal level, the
Remuneration and Nominations Committee determined
that the remuneration of the Executive and Non-Executive
members of Council should remain unchanged.

Non-Executive Members of Council do not receive a
performance related bonus. Non-Executive Membersof
Council are for travel and

expenses for attending Council and Committee meetings. All
reimbursements in retation to meetings held in London are
treated as part of taxable gross pay through payroll, as London
is deemed to be their normal place of work. Expenses are

paid in line with the MPS Expenses Policy. Through 2021 most
meetings were hetd virtually.

Nominations

Non-Executive appointments

Following election by the members, Stuart Purdy was
appointed to the role of Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee
from June 2021

In September 2021, Drs Meghana Pandit and Edmund Morris
were appointed to Council and joined the Medical Committee.

In June 2021, Charles Ormond retired after 10 years on our
dental subsidiary Board, Dental Protection Limited. Drs Jigar
Patel, Shaam Shamsi, Rubina Fur and Ryan Henessy were
appointed to the Board in the same month.

Committee on Nominations

In 2021, individual performance assessment of the members of
Council continued, complementing the Council’s performance
review. In 2021 this was undertaken internally by the Company
Secretary and findings have informed the Council development
plan. membership of sub- i and ion plans.

The 2021 Council Development Plan continued to be delivered
through e-learning and onfine sessions hosted by the Executive
and their teams. These have been beneficial, ensuring that
through COVID lockdowns, development has continued whilst
enabling members of Council to meet colleagues from across
MPS that ordinarily they may not have met in pre-COVID times.
Allmembers of Council continue to have access to the Non-
Executive Directors’ Association, which provides onling reading
and learning as well as access to networking and training events.

Political donations
No political donations were made in the financial year. which is
Group policy (2020: Enil).

Directors’ and Officers’ liabitity insurance

The Group maintains insurance cover for the protection of
Directors and senior management from personal liabilities
and costs which may arise in the course of fulfilling their
duties. This insurance was in force during the year ended 31
December 2021 and to the date of approval of the Group's
financial statements.

Statement by the Council in performance of their
statutery duties in accordance with S172(1) of the
Companies Act 2006

The Directors of MPS, both individually and together as the
Council, have acted in the way they consider, in good faith, would
be most likely to promate the success of the Company for the
benefit of the ip (having regard to MPS

and matters set out in 5172(1)(@-f) of the Act) in the decisions.
made during the year ended 31 December 2021. In doing so, the
Directors have considered (amongst other matters):

« The likely consequences of any decision in the long-term.
The interests of the Company’s employees,

The need to foster the Company’s business relationships
with suppliers, members and others.

The impact of the Company’s operations on the community
and the environment.

The desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation
for high standards of business conduct.

The need to act fairly as between members of the Company.

As part of their induction, a Director is briefed on their duties
and they can access professional advice on these, either from
the Company Secretary or. if they judge it necessary, from an
independent adviser. It is important to recognise that in MPS,
the Directors fulfil theirduties partly througha governance

that delegates d: y g to

f the Company of this canbe

Committees of the Council section on pages 43 to 45.

The following paragraphs summarise how the Directors fulfit
their duties:

- ensuring that MPS optimises the skills, knowledge and
experience of the diverse backgrounds and perspectives of
Council members.

Our Group strategy, MADE for Members, was considered
formally at the annual Council strategy day and was designed
to contribute to its success in delivering a better quality, more
reliable service for members across the world to 2025 and
beyond. We will continue to operate our business within tight
budgetary controls and in line with our financial targets.

The Medicai Protectior Society Lanited | Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021

‘Our people, and how the Council engages with colleagues and
takes account of their interests

Our people are fundamental to the delivery of our strategy.

We aim to be a responsible employer in our approach to the
pay and benefits colleagues receive. The health, safety and
wellbeing of our colleagues is one of our primary considerations
in the way we do business. Council members also meet a
selection of MPS cotleagues at informal dinners throughout the
year, with the majority of meetings being virtual in 2021.

The Council is committed to empowenng colteagues through

Good governance and business conduct

As the Board of Directors, the Council’s intention is to behave
responsibly and ensure that management operate the business.
in a responsible manner, operating within the high standards

of business conduct and good governance expected for a
business such as curs and in doing so, will contribute to the
delivery of our plan (see of

arrangements on pages 46 and 47). The i \nten[lon is to nurture
our reputation, through both the construction and delivery of
our plan, that reflects our responsible behaviour.

formal and informal ch; I
by taking the views ofcoHeagues rnto acceun( as partof the
decision-making process. To do this, the Council monitors and
seeks to act on feedback received from colleagues through
formal Colleague Engagement Surveys, People Metrics and
the Culture Dashboard. Colleagues have at least one formal
meeting with their manager each month, at which they are
encouraged to raise issues regavdmg their work, personal
pment, the wider MPS by any other matter

MPS values th ip it has with its members and other
stakeholders, and as the Board of Directors, the Councilis
openly committed to engaging with stakeholders through
effective dialogue. The Council recognises the importance of
our wider stakeholders in delivering our strategy and achieving
sustainability within our business. It is the intention of the
Council to behave responsibly toward all of our stakeholders
and treat them fairly and equally. so they too may benefit from

they wish to discuss. MPS also engages with
through Colleague Engagement Forums, the CEQ bneﬁngs
divisional updates, Walking in Members Shoes Podcast:

delivery of our strategy. We have detailed our
staheholders and thelr importance to our business in the Our

other ferums such as the Diversity & Inclusion Forum, the
colleag Women'’s Inspirati Parenting,

Pride, Black, Asian and Neurodiversity Networks, and the
Wellbeing Committee, Leaders are invited to attend monthly
people manager calls to ensure they keep abreast of matters
potentiatly impacting themselves and their teams; they are
encouraged to ask questions and provide feedback. During
2021, we have surveyed our colleagues regularly, focusing

on the health and wellbeing of our people. The results have
beenused to inform the actions taken to support our people
during 2021. Supporting colleagues through unprecedented
times has been very important to us and people leaders have
received additional training on how to support the wellbeing of
their teams.

Business relationships
We believe that effective corporate governance is critical to
delivering our strategy and supporting our members. MPS
recognises the importance of our wider stakeholders in
delivering our strategy and achieving. suslavnablllty wurhm our
business. The Council is focused on

pages 32to 35.

As part of its work on ensuring compliance with the Wates
Principles, the Councit reviewed and approved a stakeholder

plan which detailed MPS’s key base
and explored how MPS could better engage with those it
encounters and improve its business relationships. See page 41
for more details on this.

The Council values its dialogue with members throughout the
year on a diverse range of subjects. In particular, the Council
uses the Annual General Meeting to communicate financial
performance to members and encourage their participation.
Members of the Audit and Risk, Remuneration and Nomination
and Asset and Liability Committees are present at the Annual
General Meeting to respond to any relevant questions if
necessary. The notice for the Annual General Meeting is sent to
members at least 14 clear days before the meeting date.

Going concern
Members of the Council consider that MPS has adequate

strong relationships with members and with suppllers. We
value all of our suppliers and have multi-year contracts with
our key suppliers. For further details on how we work with
our members and suppliers, see Our stakeholders section on
pages 32to 35.

Community and environment
Ou r duty, in accordance with ISO2600, is toact asa sustarnable

resources in operation for the foreseeable future
and that it is therefore appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements.

In forming this view, members of the Councii have considered
the UK’s Financial Reporting Council (FRC) guidance for non-
Code companies on the Going Concern Basis of Accounting.
including the latest FRC guidance on COVID published in
December 2020. The members of the Council have approved

d recognise our to the corr
whlch our members operate. Our strategy takes into account
the impact of the Company's operations on the community
and environment and our wider societal ibilities, and

short-term detailed budget plans and financial forecasts and
have received and discussed a report detailing the current
ﬁnancial position of MPS, the implications of this over various

in particular how we impact the regions we serve across the
world. For further details on how we interact with communities
andthe see the section Supporting our
‘communities and the environment on pages 13to 18.

. the | strategy and the actions being
taken by MPS to ensure that it remains going concern,

“The Medicat Protection Society Limited | Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021
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“Report of the Coundl”

In considering the above, the members of the Council have
concluded that there are no material uncertainties which cast
doubts on MPS's ability to continue as a going concern for at
feast 12 months from the date of signing.

Aezditors

At the Annual General Meeting in June 2021, BDOLLP

were appointed as the external auditor of the Group and its
subsidiary entities across the globe.

MEENS

Members of the Council confirm that:

so far as each Council member is aware, there is no refevant
audit information of which the Company’s auditor is
unaware, and

+ the Council members have taken all steps that they ought
to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware
of that information.

BDO LLP, having expressed their willingness to continue in The Councilis responsible for the maintenance and integrity

office, will be deemed reappointed for the next financial year of the corporate and financial information included on the

in accordance with section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006 Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom I | e e I I e I I

unless the Company receives notice under section 488(1) of governing the preparation and dissemination of financial

the Companies Act 2006. statements may differ from legistation in other jurisdictions. - 5
resporsiyitity for tac Appraovai l I I | O r S

This report was approved by the Council on 20 April 2022 and —

The Council is responsible for preparing the Strategic Report signed on its behalf by:

(our How we operate section), the Report of the Council and

the financial statements in accordance with applicable law OocuSigned by: re

and regulations. DMJ‘ Ul (

Company law requires the Council to prepare financial aig A eatar

statements for each financial year. Under that law the Council ~ Company Secretary
has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable

laws), including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”. Under company
taw, the Council must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and parent company, and of
the total comprehensive income of the Company and Group
for that period.

to the members of
The Medical Protection Society Limited

In preparing these financial statements, the Councilis
required to:

Select suitable accounting policies and then apply

them consistently.

Make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent.

State whether appli UK i b

been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements.

Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presurne that the company will
continue in business.

The Councilis responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions, disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company, and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

48 The Medical Pr
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independent <

ditor's report

o the members of The ! "cv.*n_al Froiection Soeaty Lot

Temarerteafie e

In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of
the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of the
Group's surplus for the year then ended:

have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice: and

Gtiae "= ameoi o

The Directors are respor\smle for the other information. The
other i i the information included in

the annual report other than the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. Qur opinion on the financiat
statements does not cover the other information and, except
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report. we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements o
the Companies Act 2006,

We have audited the financial statements of The Medical
Protection Scciety Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group") for the year ended 31 December 2021 which
comprise the C: i of C

Income, the Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets, the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the Consolidated
and Company Statements of Changes inEquity and notﬂs to

the financial including mmary of
accounting policies. The ﬁnanclal reporung framework that has
pplied in their is law and United

Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable

in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

o diaropres
We our auditin
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applu:able taw. Our
under those further described

in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

-

We arei of the Group and Company in

with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethicat
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements.

~ta s rrgragera
In audmng the financial statements, we have concluded that
the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that.
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
Group's and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

QOur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors
with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

y is to read the other information and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the course of the audit. or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
in the financial . if. based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Ouserle oo del 2090 e L
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of
the audit:

the information given in the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements; and

the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report have been
preparedin with appli legal requir

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group
and Company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the
Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in
relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
to you f, in our opinion:

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Company. or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

the Company financial statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit.

Thve Med:nal Protecton: Socity Limited  Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021
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As explained more fullyin the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities set outon page 48 the Directors are responsible
for the the and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Inpreparing the financial statements. the Directors are responsible

for assessing the Group and Company’s ability to continue as a

going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

concern and using the going concern basts of accounting unless

the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
or i ive but to do so.

Ftara oot e ot sgdl 5T
R
QOur objectives are to obtain about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
is a high level of butisnota

that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will

detect a material mi when it exists.
Misstatermnents can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations. We design procedures inline

‘with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect materiat
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud, are detailed below:

+ Obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory
framework i tothe Company s and
the control in g iance with the

Our responses to significant audit risks over management
override of controls are intended to sufficiently address the
risk of fraudutent manipulation. Specially we review manual
adjustments made to the financial statements and the
of various estimati

Considered the accounting policies and esumatlon
techniques to ensure that they are compliant with UK
GAAP;
Enquiries of management;
Review of minutes of Board meetings throughout the
period; and

- of the financial I to
underlying supporting documentation.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of
material misstatement in the financial statements, recognising
that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due

to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve deliberate conceatment by.

for example, forgery. misrepresentations or through collusion,
There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures
performed and the further removed non-compliance with laws
and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected
in the financial statements. the less likely we are to become
aware of it.

A further description of our responsibilities is available
on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

This description forms part of our auditor's report.

o e e
This report is made solely to the Company’s members,

as a body. n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Company’s members those matters
‘we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by taw, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company'’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report. or for the opinions we have formed.
DocuSigned by:

RHEET445...
Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of BDO LLP. Statutory Auditor
London, UK

12 May 2022

Date:

8DO LLP is a limited tiability partnership registered in England
and Wales (with registered number OC305127)

The Med:cal Prerect 1 Socaty Lumited  Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021
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Financial
Statements

The Medical Protection Soclety L'mited | Annuat Reportand Financiat Statements 2021

C idated of Compt ive Income
Year ended 31 December 2021
Note 2021 2020
£'000 £000
Income N
Meimbers’ sibscriptions and other incorne 301,253 285294
Expenditure
Claims costs and associated legal costs 17 213,606 194.892
Advisory costs and associated legal costs 17 55,346 44,816
Movernent in projected insirance recoveries (213) 3974)
Education, publications and external relations 5a 9,650 8726
Administration expenses. sb 65.960 44,491
Finance cost (unwinding of discount) 17 9,100 34801
(Profit)/loss on exchange movements Sc (5.911) 21748
347,540 345.500
Deficit of member (46,287) (60.206)
Netincome frominvestments 3 52,202 63,002
Netinterest on defined benefit pension asset 9 302 529
Change in fair value of investinents 12a 112,278 73.034
Change in fair value of derivatives 12a 19,805 (4.607)
Contribution before taxation 138,300 71752
Tax charge oninvestment income and gains 7a (44,541) 27.739)
Net contrit for the year ilable 93,759 44013
Other comprehensive income
Remeasureinents of defined benefit pension scherne 9 27,635 (@749
t ive i for the financiat year 121,394 39.264
The C Staternent of Compi it has been prepared on the basis that all activities refate to continuing operations.

The notes on pages 57 to 79 form part of these financial statements.
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Financial Statements

Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets
As at 31 December 2021

Fixed assets
Intangible assets

Tangible assets

lnvestments

Derivative assets

Defined benefit pension asset

Current assets

Debtors - receivable within one year
- receivable after one year

Banik deposit accounts

Cashat bank and inhand

Creditors: s Falling due within one y
Net current assets

Total assets tess current linbilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after one year
Provisions for liabilities

Oerivative liabilities

Netassets

Accumulated funds
income and expenditure

Funds available for members

The parent company's et fon for the ¥
The financial \d a Lhoris

DocuSigned by: Docusigned by:

lan. €ardley Simew, kayll

S77EGFO1BABSA... OF82A39F 28426
fan Eardley Simon Kayll
Chair of Council Chief Executive

The Medical Protection Society Limited
Registered Company No. 00036142

Note

16
17

22

The notes on pages 57 to 79 form part of these financial staterments.

2021 2020 2021 2020
Group Growp  Company  Company
£000 £000 £000 £000

18,291 20,149 18,466 20.340
26,349 34743 26,068 34725
2622603 2561733 1336601 1,259.601
66,342 14113 - .
49,501 21564 49,501 21564
2783086 _ 2652302 _ 1430636 _ 1336230
34,953 31967 121,652 163717
20,729 31640 26,693 37962
206,508 178877 19,986 24570
103,581 28.295 21,991 27.451
365,771 270779 190,322 253,700
(105,429) (124666) __ (126,468) (129,563)
260,342 146,113 63,854 124137
3,043,428 2798415 1,494,490 1460367
(669) (548) 669) (548)
(833621) 742547y (769,101) (706.422)
(51,225) (18.801) - .
2,157,913 2,036,519 724,720 753,397
2157913 2.036,519 724,720 753.397
2157913 2036519 724,720 753.397

The Medical Protection Society Lirnited | Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021

‘was a deficit of £56.3in (2020: £32.8m deficit).
d for issire by the Council on 20 April 2022 and were signed onits behalf by:

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended 31 December 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Net contribution for the year to fund:

meimbers

Adjustiments for:

Asnortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of tangible assets
Revaliation of investinent property
finpairinent of tangibie assets
Foreign exchange translation
Interest received

Dividends received from fixed asset i

Taxation charge
Net fair value
Loss o disposal of tangible assets
Loss on disposal of intangible assets
(increase)/decrease in debtors
Increase/(decrease) in creditors,

in Staternent of C¢ ive Incoine

Increase in provisions.
Net interest on defined benefit pension asset.
Cash from operations

Income taxes paid
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of tangible assets

Proceeds from sale of fixed asset

Purchase of fixed asset investments

nterest received

Dividends received from fixed asset investments

Net cashused in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Foreign exchange translation

Cash t beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents ot end of year

The notes on pages 57 to 79 form part of these financial statements.

The Medical Protection Society Uimited

2021
£000

93,759

3,033
1,756
4,524
2,749
(5.911)
(4,988)
(a7,214)
44,541
(132,083)
%

141
(19,309)
21649
$5.767
(302)
18,208

(26.122)
(7.914)

(1,316)
(731
1,182,562
(1,221,605)
4,988
47,214

11,112

3,198

9,268
399,325

411,791

2020
£000

44013

21748
(6.036)
(56.966)
27739
(68.427)
20

318
17950
(8.160)
63758

(529)

40964

(69.535)

(28.571)

(L744)
(564)
1,568,985
(1.558,096)

43,012

(1729
378042

399,325

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021
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Financial Statements

Analysis of changes in net funds A Cashflow Foreign At
1Jan2021  movement exchange 31 Dec 2021

£000 £000 £000 €000

Cash at bank andin hand 28,205 60,479 14,807 103,581
Bank deposit accounts. 178877 28401 @70 206,508
Cashwith investment managers 192153 (85.682) (4.769) 101,702
Net funds 399,325 3,198 9,268 411,791

OF the net funds held by MPS, £15.2im (2020 £15.1(m) is held in trust on behalf of the MPS Periodical Payments Trust, which was established

or o
segregated managed cash portfolio, can only be used to meet liabil
settle any other MPS tiabilities.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2021

A1 January 2020
Net contribution for the year
f defined benef

Total comprehensive income for the year
At 31 December 202C

Net contribution for the year
of defned benefi son sche

Total comprehensive income for the year
At 31 December 2021

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2021

At 1 Jamiary 2020
Net contribustion for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
At 31 December 2020

Net contribution for the year
F

Totat conmprehensive income for the year
At 31 December 2021

The notes on pages 57 to 79 form part of these financial statements.

56 i Saciety Liinized P inanci 2021

odical payment orders. The Trust's funds, which are invested ina
s resuiting from periodical payinent orders and are not available to

Income and expenditure
€000

55
44,013
(4.749)
39.264

2,036,519

93,759
27635
121,394
2,157,913

Income and expenditure
£'000

790854
(32808

(4.749)
(37.557)
753,397

(56312)

27635
(28,677)
724,720

Notes to the
Financial

Statements

i Company information 3 Significant ing judgs and

The Medical Potection Society Limited is a private company, P ion of the financial requires

limited by guarantee, registered in England with company to make significant judgements and estimates. The items

number 00035142 at Level 19, The Shard, 32 London Bridge in the financial statements where these judgements and

Street, London, SE1 95G. estimates have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

2 Basis of preparation of the financiat are betow.

These financidl statements have been prepared in accordance

with appficabl: United Kingdom accounting standards, Provision for the future cost of claims (note 17)

including Finamcial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Provisionis made, as appropriate. for estimated future costs.

Reporting Staxdard applicable in the United Kingdom and and damages, legal costs and claims handling costs expected

Republic of Irgland” (FRS 102), and with the Companies Act toarise from all requests for assistance, which have been

2006. The financial statements have been prepared on the notified to MPS by 31 December and in respect of which the.

historical cost basis, except for the modification to a fair value Council has exercised. or is expected to exercise, its discretion to

basis for certain financial instruments and investment property.  provide indemnity. These provisions require management's best

as specified inthe accounting policies below. estimate of the costs that will be incurred. The timing of cash
flows and the discount rates used to establish the net present

The financial statements are presented in Sterling (€) and are value of the future settlement values require management’s

rounded to th2 nearest thousand (£°000). i and iled in the rel accounting policy
(note 4() and the disclosure for provisions (note 17).

The Group's financial statements consolidate the financial

statements o* The Medical Protection Society Limited and provision is made in the financial for the
its subsidiary sndertakings, as detailed in note 13. The potential claims that may arise from incidents that occurred
consolidation 's prepared as at 31 December each year. before 31 December, but which had not been reported to MPS

at that date. This is a key judgement area which the Council

After reviewirg the Company's forecasts and projecti has i 5 that these potential
rmembers of t e Council have a reasonable expectation that claims do not constitute a liability as recognition is dependent.
the Group haz adequate resources to continue in operational onthe exercise of discretion by the Council; and there is no
existence for -he foreseeable future. For further detail on constructive or legal obtigation to recognise them until such

this assessmant, see the Going Concern section in the Report discretion is exercised. The exercise of discretion by the Council

of the Councit which forms part of these financial statements, s set out In the Articles of Association in paragraph 40.

on page 47. Tke Company therefore continues to adopt the

going concerr basis in preparing its financial statements. In reaching this judgement, the Council considered whether
members have a valid expectation that assistance will be
provided. in full, with regards to all submitted ctaims. Having
considered how discretion is exercised by MPS, the Council
concluded that there cannot be a valid expectation that all
requests for assistance will be metin full, and therefore thatit
is not appropriate to make a provision for potential claims that
have not been reported by 31 December. However, the Council
believes it is appropriate to make an estimate of the cost of
these potential future claims when assessing the adequacy of
MPS's funding position. This estimate is disclosed in note 22.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

and

estimates (continued)
Defined benefit pension scheme (note 9)
The Group has obligations to pay pension benefits to current
and past employees who are members of the defined beneft
pension scheme (“the scheme"). The cost of these benefits
and the present value of the obligation are dependentona

4 Principal accounting policies

(a) Consolidation

The Group financial statements comprise a consolidation of the
financial statements of the parent company {the “Company”)
and all of its subsidiary undertakings (together, the “Group) as
at 31 December and as identified in note 13.

nurnber of factors such as life . asset valuations and

the discount rate on corporate bonds. Management estimates

these factors with guidance from external actuaries, in order to

determine the net pension obligation in the balance sheet. The
i flect historical experience and current trends.

The actuarial calculations indicate a significant surplus on the
accounting valuation basis. Due to the closure of the scheme in
2018, the Company has no continuing contributions planned,
against which the asset would be utilised. However, the asset
can still be realised through a refund from the scheme after
meeting all pensioner obligations, at the point that the scheme
is finally wound up, typically on the death of the final pensioner.
After considering legal advice on the terms of the pension
trust deed, the Council censiders that MPS's entitlement to
the residual assets is sufficiently certain that the asset can be
recognised as at the year end.

Valuation of untisted investments (note 12a)

Some of the investments held by the Group are not traded

on active markets, so it is not possible to value the asset

or liability using a quoted price in an active market. Where
there is no quoted price available it is sometimes possible to
use observable market data for valuation; examples include
forward foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps.
Where there is an absence of quoted prices and observable
market data the Company relies on the valuation methodology
applied by the investment manager to ascertain the fair value
of the assets, these are disclosed in level 3 of the fair value
tierarchy in note 12(d).

The Council has judged that the valuation policies and controls,
which the investment managers have in place for unlisted
investments, are sufficient to be able to use the valuations
provided to account for the investments at fair value.

Further details on the valuation of investments and derivatives

disclosedin the tion in notes 4(g)
and 4(h).
Deferred tax

In preparing the financial statements the Directors made the

that the equity i as shown in note
12(a), are held for long-term investment. The deferred tax
payable on the change in fair value that would be taxable on
disposal has been calculated at 25% (2020: 19%), the tax
rate applicable from 1 April 2023, except where the disposal
is expected to occur in 2022 where the appropriate rate of
corporation tax is 19%.

The i financial incorporate the results
of business combinations using the purchase method. In the
balance sheet, the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities are initially recognised at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The results of acquired operations are
included in the i statement of i
income from the date on which control is obtained. They are
deconsolidated from the date controt ceases.

Asalx i of C ive Income is
published, the parent company has taken advantage of the
exemption in section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has
notincluded its own statement of comprehensive income n
these financial statements. Also, as a Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows is published. the parent company has taken

f the ionin 1.12(b) of FRS 102
and has not included its own statement of cash flows in these
financial statements.

(b) Subscription income
Subscription income comprises amounts receivable during
the year. apportioned to accounting periads based on actual
membership periods and stated at the fair value of the

i i Itis ised when the Company
has performed its obligation to provide a period of membership,
which allows members to seek assistance for incidents
occurring during that period, and in exchange obtained the
right i ion. Income is not the end of
the period of membership, as future benefits arising from that
period of membership will be subject to the Council exercising
its discretion to provide such benefits.

N i i

ysi income is shown
because, in the opinion of the Council, it would be seriously
prejudicial for the Group to do so.

{c) Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible t ised at cost. isation is
provided on a straight-line basis on the cost of intangible
assets so as to write them down to nil value over their
expected useful lives, Where there is evidence of impairment,
intangible assets are written down to their current valuation,
with any such write down being charged to net contribution to
funds. The expected useful lives of intangible assets are:

Intellectuat property rights 5years
Copyrights 22years
Software 5-10years

(d) Tangible assets and depreciation

Tangible assets are ised at cost. Depreciation ided
on a straight-tine basis on the cost of tangible assets soas to
write them down to their estimated residual value over their
expected useful lives. Where there is evidence of impairment,
tangible assets are written down to recoverable amounts.
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Any such write down is recognised immediately in net
contribution to funds. The expected useful lives of tangible
assets are:

Freehold buiildings 40 years

Leasehold property the termof the lease
Compuiters ayears

Fueniture and fittings 20years

Office equipment . 65years

Motor vehicles 3years

Land is not depreciated.

(e) Investment properties

Investment properties, for which the fair value can be measured
reliably on an ongoing basis, are measured at fair value, annually,
with any change recognised in net contribution to funds.

(F) Translation of foreign currency transactions

income and iture in foreign ies are to
the Sterling equivalent at the rate ruling at the transaction date.
Monetary assets and liabilities appearing in the balance sheet
are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at 31 December.
Any gains or losses are taken to net contribution to funds.

(g) Netinvestmentincome

Investment income is made up of interest, dividends, realised
gains/losses and derivative income, Interest receivable

is brought into account on an accruals basis, under the
effective interest method, with derivative income and realised
gains/losses accounted for when received/paid. As equity
investments are in pooled funds and unit trusts, dividend
income is reinvested rather than distributed. Such income

is therefore included within the fair value movement on
investments rather than being recorded as dividend income.

{h) Investments

Investments are recognised initially at fair value which is
normally the transaction price. They are then subsequently
measured as follows:

Listed investments (which include cash held by the investment.
managers ay g investment) are measured at
fair value through net contribution to funds using the bid-price.
Changes in fair value are recognised in net contribution to funds.

Unlisted investments. for which an independent market
valuation is available, are measured at fair value through net
contribution to funds.

Unlisted infrastructure funds are measured at fair value
using a discounted cash flow valuation methodology. In this
methodology the future cash flows that are expected to
be generated by an asset and made available to the fund,

premium at acquisition. unless there is aninherent change in
the risk profile of the business which may necessitate a change.
Foreign assets are converted using the exchange rate on the
valuation date. Changes in fair value are recognised in net
contribution to funds.

The direct lending fund is carried at fair value. Fair value is
determined by using the funds valuation approach which is
based on a net asset value. Unlisted direct lending funds are
measured at par value including any deferred interest which
has been capitalised up to the valuation date. If the senior debt
or bond has an S&P Rating of “CCC-" or lower, a fair value is
determined by applying a standardised valuation approach.
Thereby, the fair enterprise value of the respective company

is derived based on a fair enterprise value (EV) determination.
The EVis computed using a variety of techniques including,
‘but not limited to, determination based on latest EBITDA
figures (or forecast / budgeted EBITDA figures) using public and
private transaction multiples as comparables. Where the fair
enterprise value determined above is less than the underlying
company’s net debt position, the investment is written-down
to the fair value calculated correspondingly.

The inflation opportunities portfolio and multi-asset credit
investments are measured using the net asset values provided
by the fund managers. The funds contain a variety of assets
that are measured at fair value through net contribution to
funds. The fair value of the undertying financial instruments

is based on their quoted mid-market prices at the reporting
date. If a quoted market price is not available on a recognised
stock exchange, or from a broker/dealer for non-exchange
traded financial instruments, the fair value of the instrument is
estimated using valuation techniques. including use of recent
arm's length market transactions, pricing models, or any other
valuation technique that provides a reliable estimate of prices
obtained in actual market transactions. Collective lnvestment.
Schemes (CIS) are priced based on the valuation supplied

by the administrator of the CIS. Financial assets include
investments in open-ended investment funds. Fair value is
based on the underlying fund administrator’s cateulation of
net asset value per share which will be the latest mid-prices
published by the collective investment schemes, unless any
adjustments are required for illiquidity, low trading volumes or
any such factors that indicate that the mid-price may not be
Fair value.

For real estate debt funds, any underlying properties are valued
in accordance with Practice Statement 4.2 of the Appraisal and
Valuation Manual (1995) of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS). For the ground rent element where the
investment is in “strips”, the fair value is deemed to be equal

to the historical cost. adjusted for amortisation and other
payments received, less any impairment.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost, less provision for
impairment, where necessary, to reduce the book value to the

for exampte through dividends or loan are
estimated, and these are discounted back to the valuation
date. The discount rate comprises a risk premium reflecting
the uncertainty associated with the cash flows, and the risk-
free interest rate applicable in the country in which the asset
is located. The risk premium is determined as the implied risk

amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4  Principal ing policies

(i) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value
using a specified valuation technique (see below) with any gains
or losses being reparted in the statement of comprehensive
income. Outstanding derivatives at the reporting date are
included under the appropriate format heading depending on
the nature of the derivative.

MPS currently targets a liability hedge of 100%, using a mix
of physical assets and derivative exposures. Collateral is
received/given, in cash, to support derivative assets/liabilities,
as appropriate. Gilt repurchases are used to generate cash

for collateral when required. Any cash given remains an asset
of MPS and any cash received is not recognised until the
derivative position is realised. MPS retains economic ownership
of gilts posted as coltateral.

Interest rate swaps are valued on a daily basis by MPS's
investment managers using a detaited valuation methodology
for a zero-coupon interest rate swap. Interest rate curves
using real-time quotes from a number of market sources are
used to value the swaps along with interpolation required to
calculate the cash flow due, or payable. on each swap's floating
rate leg. The investment manager reconciles the valuations
on a daily basis between their own systems and those of the
ty. In addition, an i third-party agent
is also used to value the trades. The three-way reconciliation
process ensures that the valuations are in line with the
market on any given day and enables variations in valuation

(K isions for liabilities
Costs and damages for claims
Provisions ted, iate. for esti future

costs and damages, legal costs and claims handling costs.
expected to arise from all claims that have been notified to
MPS by 31 December in respect of which the Council has
exercised, or is expected to exercise, its discretion to provide
indemnity. The estimate of these costs is provided on an
individual basis by claims managers along with an estimation
of the likelihood that MPS will have to settle the ctaim. These
estimates are stated before deducting estimated recoveries
from insurers, which are disclosed separately within debtors.
i i quarterly.

The discounted future settlement values are deemed to be the

best estimate of th . The ling of the dis nt
is separately identified in the claims provision (note 17) and is
di d within fir innet ibution to funds.

Incurred but not reported (IBNR)

Provisions are created, as appropriate, for estimated future
claims costs which are expected to arise from reinsurance
contracts where incidents have not been reported at 31
December, but which are expected to be valid claims. The value
of such claims is based on actuarial estimates which take into
consideration the average settlement period. Due to the nature
of these policies, these claims are not discounted. however,
claims inflation was estimated to be 8.1% (2020: 8.1%).

Oilapidations
rot

betweenthe manager and the tobe
investigated in a timely fashion.

A third-party currency management system is utilised by MPS's
investment managers to obtain valuations for foreign exchange
forward contracts. This system uses WM Reuters Fix rate to
value the open market contracts against the traded rate. The
number of contracts and market value difference is reconciled
against counterparties daily and material variances flagged for
further investigation.

n, the Group's investment managers are permitted to
ive financial i to enhance i

returns, These instruments are measured at fair value with any

changes in value and gains or losses credited or charged to net

contribution to funds.

The currency swaps are not designed to be a perfect hedge
and the Group has not adopted any form of hedge accounting.

() Cashdeposits
Cash deposits (consisting of bank deposit accounts, and

cash at bank and in hand) are held to meet working capital
requirements and when awaiting long-term investment within
MPS's managed portFfolios. A range of deposit accounts and
cash equivalents such as liquidity funds are used for this
purpose. The funds are kept tiquid with the vast majority
available on call.

Cash equivalents are short-term, higbly liquid assets, which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

created, iate, for the estimated future
cost of restoring leasehold property assets back to their original
condition. Estimates are based on the present value of the

required to settle the obligation, di ata
rate whichis linked to the Group's return on investments.

Onerous lease
Provisi

created, as appropriate. for thy

future cost of any l whert
those costs are deemed to be in excess of the future economic
benefits. Any such provision s recognised at the point that the
lease becomes onerous.

Provisions for onerous leases are reversed where the economic
benefits of a given lease outweigh the committed cost.

o Tex

Current tax is recognised for the amount of income tax payable
inrespect of the taxable profit for the current or past reporting
periods, using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted,
or substantively enacted, by the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences
at the reporting date, except otherwise as indicated.
Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal
of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.
Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates and laws.

that have been enacted, or substantively enacted, by the
reporting date, that are expected to apply to the reversal of
the timing difference.
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The tax (charge)/credit is presented either in net contribution
to funds or equity, depending on the nature of the transaction
that resulted in the tax (charge)/credit.

Deferred tax liabilities are presented within provisions for
liabilities and deferred tax assets within debtors. Deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if the Group
has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities, and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate toincome taxes levied by the
same taxation authority.

(m) Pensions
MPS operates two types of pension scheme: defined
contribution and defined benefit.

Adefined contribution scheme is a pension scheme under
which the Group pays fixed contributions and provides no
guarantee as to the quantum of retirement benefits that
those contributions will uitimately purchase. A defined benefit

price information, and in the case of quoted securities, 1s the
published bid price.

Defined benefit pension scheme surpluses are limited to the
extent they are considered recoverable, either through reduced
contributions or agreed refunds from the scheme.

The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about
discount rates, future safary increases, mortality rates and
future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the
valuation the underlying assumptions and the fong-term
nature of the scheme, such estimates are subject to significant
uncertainty. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
Company considers the rate of return from UK gilts and future
RPI inflation by deriving a single-weighted average over the
appropriate Bank of Engtand curve (extrapolated for years
beyond 25) taking account of the scheme’s projected benefit
cash flows at each duration. The mortality rate is based on
publicly available mortality tables for the UK.

schemeis one that is not a defined contribution scheme
The assets of both schemes are invested and managed
independently of MPS's finances.

Defined contribution schemes

The cost of the defined contribution pension schemes (the
contributions) are charged to the statement of comprehensive
income in the year to which they relate.

Defined benefit schemes

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
planis determined using the projected unit credit method.
which attributes entitlement to benefits to the current cost
period to calculate current service cost, and to the current
and prior periods to determine the present value of defined
benefit obligations and is based on actuarial advice. When a
settlement or a curtailment occur. the change in the present
value of the scheme liabilities and the fair value of the plan
assets reflects the gain or loss, which is recognised in the
income statement during the period in which it occurs.

The net interest element is determined by multiplying the
net defined benefit asset/liability by the discount rate at the
start of the period, taking into account any changes in the
net defined benefit asset/liability during the period as a result
of contribution and benefit payments. The net interest is
recognised in net contribution to funds as other finance
income or cost.

Remeasurements, including actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the asset ceiling and the return on the net defined
benefit asset/liability (excluding amounts included in net
interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements
are not reclassified to net contribution to funds in
subsequent periods.

The defined bensfit pension asset, or liability, in the balance
sheet comprises the total present value of the defined
benefit obligation, calculated using a discount rate based on
UK gilts, less the fair value of plan assets, out of which the
obligations are to be settled. Fair value is based on market.

Further i ion on the structure of the defined benefit
scheme is contained within note 9.

(n) Operatingleases
Leases where substantially all of the risks and rewards of

not tr to the Group treated as
operating leases. Rentals under operating leases are charged
against net contribution to funds on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease. Operating lease incentives are
recognised, on a straight-tine basis. as a reduction of the rental
expense, over the term of the lease.

(0) Current assets and liabilities

Current assets and liabilities (except in relation to the defined
benefit pension scheme) are measured at the present value of
future cash flows. These amounts are tested for impairment,
with any impairment identified charged to net contribution

to funds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5a Education, publications and external relations 7a  Taxcharge oninvestment income and gains
Included under this classification are costs fated with ing and delivering education and risk gement services to 2021 2020
members, with the aim of reducing risk and Haising with i and professional ive bodies around the £000 £000
world, on behalf of members and the wider ions, on matty to MPS and our members. Current tox:
5b  Administration expenses UK comporation tax 11,921 61632
2021 2020 Adjustments in respect of prior years 3587 1725
£000 £000 Overseas taxation 743 556
Included under this classification are: Total current tax 16,251 63913
Operating lease rentals:
- Land and buildings 2652 2733 Deferredtax:
- Motor vehicles - 121 Origination and reversal of titni es (33833
- Office equipment 241 179 Changesin the tax rate
Depreciation of tangible assets (note 11) 1756 1806 Adjustientin respect of prior years 34y
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 10) 3,033 3.266 Total deferred tax (36174)
Employer contributions to defined contribution persion schemes 7,418 6912
Onerous lease provision (note 17) 16,000 - Tax charge oni i d gains in the C
of Comprehensive Income for the year 44,541 27739
Auditors reruneration: .
Services to the Company and ts subsidiaries 7b  Factors affecting tax charge for the year
Fees payable to the Comnpany's anditor for the audit of the annual financial statements 155 159 2021 2020
Fees payable to the Cornpany's auditor and s associates for other services: . » o £000 £000
Audit of the financial fthe Company iaries, pursuant to legislat 89 66 L:?t:}xmngdm nat 1;:: (;;a;;gg;: The differences are explained as follows: corporation axinthe
Services to the Compary’s associated pension scheme Contribution before tax ) 138,300 71752
Audit of the financial statemesits of the Scherme. pursuant to legistation 12 _—
[ d et gains fromi muittiplied by corporation
Sc  Exchange movements taxin the UK of 19% (2020 19%) 26,277 13633
The majority of the (gains)/losses on exchange movements relate to the restatement of cash assets held to match those liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies. These (gains) are ially offset by a c ing i ease within :
international claim liabilities, which are included in claims costs and associated legal costs within the consolidated statement of Retlinked indexation @z @30
comprehensive income. Adjustiment in respect of prior years - current tax 3587 1725
Adjustrnent in respect of prior years - deferred tax (2,981) (2341
6  Net income from investments Disallowable mutial trade losses 11,104 6,879
2021 2020 Differencein tax rates 6,730 7517
£000 £000 Foreigntax 743 556
Deferred tax not recognised 202 -
Bond and gilt interest 41,067 36,274 Tax charge for the year TTaaser . 2773
Bankinterest 4,988 6036
Other investment income 23,696 18,449
Derivative (paymentsyincome (17,549) 2243 The di mutual trade | aboy the balance of members’ subscription income over related expenditure, which,
. T s2202 | 63002 due to MPS's mutual status, is not subject to corporation tax.
Otheri income includes distributions from the infrastructure, real estate debt, multi-asset credit and inflation The aggregate current and deferred tax relating to items that are ised as items of other ive income is £nil
opportunities funds. (2020: €ni).
As disclosed in note 4(g). dividend income from MPS's equity investments is not distributed but is reinvested and therefore 7c  Factors that may affect future tax charges
included in the change in fair value of investments rather than as net income from i in the Consoli of The UK corporation tax rate for the year is 19% (2020: 19%). Anincrease in the main rate of UK corporation tax, to 25%, has
Comprehensive (ncome. been enacted in 2021, which is effective from 1 Aprit 2023. Consequently. deferred tax previously provided at 19% has now

been provided at 25% on all investments expected to be retained beyond 2023. This results in an increase in the 2021 deferred
tax liability and the 2021 tax charge of £6.7m (2020: £7.5m). The increase in the UK corporation tax rate will increase future tax
charges and balances accordingly.
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8 Directors and employees

The average number of pecple. including Directors and all members of the Council, employed in the provision of services to
members during the year was 1,056 for the Group (2020: 985) and 995 for the Company (2020 949). Costs in respect of these
employees were:

2021 2020 2021 2020

Group Group Company Company

£'000 £000 £'000 £000

Wages and salaries 49,555 49,774 46,729 48093
Social security costs 4,922 5,259 4,826 5.16%
Pension costs 8194 7439 7949 7314
62,671 62,472 59,504 60.568

A detailed analysis of Directors’ remuneration, including salaries, fees, benefits, bonuses and pension contributions, is provided in
the Remunerations report, which forms part of these financial statements (see page 45).

9  Pensions

MPS operates two types of pension scheme: a funded defined benefit pension scheme, which is administered under Trust and a
defined contribution pension scheme, which is averseen by the Defined Contribution Oversight Committee. The assets of both
schemes are held independently of MPS's finances.

Ci ibuti to the defined contr
they relate.

scheme are charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the year to which

Contributions to the defined benefit scheme were paid to the scheme in accordance with the Schedute of Contributions agreed
between the Trustees and MPS. However, the defined benefit scheme was closed to new entrants on 1 November 2013, at which
time the defined contribution scheme was introduced. On 30 September 2018, the defined benefit scheme was closed to future
accrual, meaning no additional service has been accrued since that date and pension increases until retirement will be limited to
RP), rather than any assumptions on pay increases.

The funding of the defined benefit scheme is based on a triennial valuation. The last full actuariat valuation compieted, and
agreed. was as at 31 December 2020. These were signed on 30 March 2022. The valuations indicated that, on the agreed funding
basis. the defined benefit scheme had a surplus of £18m. This compares to a surplus of £11m at the previous valuation, as at

31 December 2017. The valuation has then been further updated to the accounting date by an independent qualified actuary,
inctuding updating underlying membership data to reflect scheme membership as at 31 December 2021.

As a result of the funding position, there are currently no deficit contributions payable and therefore there is no ‘minimum funding
requirement’ in force.

The following tables set out, as at the reporting date, the key assumptions used for the defined benefit scheme, the fair values of
the assets, analysed by asset class, the present vélue of the scheme liabilities and the resulting pension surplus. Since the closure
of the scheme to future accrual, any asset would not be recoverable through a reduction in future contributions to the scheme,
however, it is recoverable on the winding up of the scheme, typically when the final member of the scheme dies.

Amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet

2021 2020
£'000 £000
Fair valiie of scheine assets ’ 224835 218426
Present value of obligations (175.339) (196862)
Defined benefit pension asset 49,501 21,564

The Medical ; imited | Anmual R inanci 2021

Movement in net defined benefit asset

Opening defined benefit pension asset

Gaininnet contibution to funds

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Closing defined benefit pension asset

Amounts ised in the of

Net interest income ondefined benefit pension asset.
Total gain recognised in net contribution to funds

Rerneasureiments
A ised in other ive income

Assets

Equities
Liability driven iwestment
Oiversified growith fund
Cash and net current assets
Total

income

The fair value of scheme assets moved over the year as follows:

Opening fair value of scheine assets.
Interest on assets

Benefits paid

Actual return on plan assets less interest
Closing fair value of scheme assets

Actual returi on assets

The Medical Protection Society Lirnited

2021 2020

€000 £000

21,564 25.784

302 529

27635 (4.749)

49,501 21.564

2021 2020

£000 £000

302 529

302 529

27,635 (4.749)

27635 (4,749)

2021 2020

% £000 % £000
17 37,259 16 35336
68 153,034 68 147.194
15 33535 16 35685
- 1,007 - 211
100 224,835 100 218.426
2021 2020

€000 £000

218,426 198903

3038 3998

(2,935} 7813

6,306 23338

224,835 218,426

9,344 27.336
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9  Pensions (continued) 10 Intangible assets
Liabilities Software Copyrights Total
£000 £000 £000
The present value of obligations moved over the year as follows: Group
2021 2020
€000 £000 Cost
At 1 Jamary 2021 32097 16 32113
Opering present valte of obligations 196,862 73119 Additions 1316 . 1316
Interest on obligation 273 3,469 Disposals (145) - (145)
Beuefits paid 2.935) 7813 At 31 December 2021 33.268 16 33,284
Actuarial (gain)/loss (21,329) 28087
Closing present value of obligations 175,334 196,862
AU1 January 2021 11949 15 11964
Actuarial assumptions Chargeinyear 3032 1 3033
2021 2020 Disposals “) - (@)
% pa %pa At 31 December 2021 14,977 16 14,993
Price RPIinflation 35 31 Net book value
Discount rate 18 14 At 31 December 2021 18,291 - 18,291
Pension increases (LP} 5%) 34 31 AL 31 December 2020 20,148 1 20149
Pension increases (LPi 3%) 2.6 25
On the basis of the assumptions used for life expectancy, a male pensioner currently aged 60 would be expected to live fora Software Copyrights Total
further 26.6 years (2020: 28.3 years) and a femate pensioner currently aged 60 would be expected to live for a further 29.4 years £000 £000 £000
(2020: 30.5 years). is made for fut inlife company
As the scheme was closed to future accrual in September 2018, MPS did not make contributions during the year to 31 December
2021 (2020: £nil). No contributions are payable under the current schedule of contributions. as agreed with the Trustees. Cost
AL 1 Jamiary 2021 32082 394 32476
Additions 1312 - 1312
Disposats (145 - 4s)
At 31 December 2021 33,249 394 33,643
Amortisation
A1 Janvary 2021 11940 196 12136
Chargeinyear 3027 18 3045
Disposals @ - “@)
At 31 December 2021 14,963 214 15,177
Net book value
At 31 December 2021 18,286 180 18,466
At 31 December 2020 20.142 198 20.340

Software additions include £1.2m (2020 £1.6m) of capital expenditure relating to the member administration IT system.
The remaining amortisation relating to this asset at the end of 2021 is £17.8m, which will be released over its remaining
useful economic life of six years.

The Groupi ible assets include ir property rights, being copyrights for educational training material, acquired by a
Group company, The Cognitive Consulting Group Pty Limited (CCG) (note 13).

The Cornpany i
from CCG.

ts includk

by the parent company, The Medical Protection Society Limited,
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11 Tangible assets

Computers,
furniture,
fittings
Investment  Freehold land Leasehold and office Motor
property  and buildings property equipment vehicles Total
€'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2021 2181 31412 5,200 8159 41 46993
Additions - 14 286 381 50 EES
Disposals - - 352 (362) 48) (762)
Trausfer between categories 12143 {12143} = = N -
Revaluation {4,524) - - - - (4.524)
Impainvent - 2749 - - - @19
At 31 December 2021 9,800 16,534 5,134 8,178 43 39,689
Depreciation
At 1 January 2021 - 4,459 1500 6,256 35 12.250
Chargeinyear - 800 3n 576 9 1756
Disposals - - (346) (287) (33 (666)
At 31 December 2021 - 5,259 1,525 6,545 1 13,340
Net book value
At 31 December 2021 9800 11,275 3,609 1633 32 26,349
At 31 Decernber 2020 2181 26953 3.700 1903 6 34743
Computers,
furniture,
fittings
Investment  Freehold land Leasehold and office Motor
property  and buildings property equipment vehicles Total
£:000 €000 £000 £000 €000 £'000
Company
Cost orvatuation
At 1 Janusary 2021 2181 31412 5.200 8097 41 46931
Additions - 14 34 13 50 411
Disposals - - (352 (361) (@8) (761)
Transfer between categories 12143 (12,143) - - - -
Revaluation @524 - - . - (4524
tmpairment. - (2.749) - - - (2.749)
At 31 December 2021 9,800 16,534 4,882 8,049 a3 39,308
Depreciation
AL Sanvary 2021 - 4,455 1500 6212 5 12,206
Charge in year - 800 340 550 9 1699
Disposals - - (346) (286) 33 (665)
At 31 December 2021 - 5.259 1,494 6.476 11 13,240
Net book vatue
At 31 December 2021 9,800 11,275 3388 1,573 32 26,068
At 31 Decermber 2020 2,181 26953 3700 1.885 6 34725
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The investment properties were acquired in 2016 and 2017 in open market, arm’s length transactions. The revaluation was
conducted by an independent, third-party valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle. on an open market basis as at 31 December 2021.

At 31 December 2021, one of our properties in Leeds was reclassified from Freehold land and buildings into Investment property,

due to the vast majority of the building being leased. or available for lease. Following this reclassification, a revaluation was

performed, as aated above, and the carrying value was subsequently reduced by £5.8m to £6.3m. Conversely, an increase in
luation of £1.3m was ised for existing i properties.

The historical cost of investment properties held at fair value is £18.5m (2020: £4.7m).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors considered the current economic conditions, specifically around changes
inworking practices and the utilisation of office space. As such, an impairment charge of £2.7m has been recognised within
Ninis ion expenses in the C i of C¢ ive Income.

All of the leasehold properties held at 31 December 2021, by the Group and by the Company. are short (easeholds.

Capital commitments
Capital expenditure approved and contracted for amounted to £nil (2020: £0.3m).

12a investments and derivatives

Group Total investments. Total derivatives
£'000 £'000
Valuation at 1 January 2021 2561733 (4.688)
Investiment additions 1221605 -
Disposals at carrying valie (1.182,562) -
Movermert in cash balances (90.451) -
Fair value adjustinents 112278 19,805
At 31 December 2021 2,622,603 15,117
Company Total investments.
€000

hwestinent in subsidiaries (note 13)
Costasat 1 January 2021 1.259.601
Additions 77.000
As at 31 December 2021 1,336,601

Investments comprise:

2021 2020 2021 2020
Group Group Company Company
£'000 £'000 £'000 £1000
Listed investments 1,386,253 1,265,953 - -
Unlisted investiments 1,105,605 1.074,584 - -
Sharesin Group indertakings - - 1,336,601 1,259.601

2,491,858 2340537 1,336,601 1.259.601

Cash 130,745 221,196 - -
2,622,603 2,561,733 1,336,601 1,259.601

Derivative financiatinstrunents (12b)

- assets 66,342 14113 - -
- liabilities (51,225) (18.801) - -
15,117 (4.688) - -

For further information on derivative financial instruments, see note 12b.

Allother fixed asset ir are at fair value with changes in value reflected in the net contribution to funds.
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12b Derivative financial instruments

The foll derivative financiat i in note 12a, were held at the end of the year:
Interest rate swaps
Duration Nature of contract Notionat value Asset Liability
£'000 £'000 £'000
2yrs-10yrs Pay fixed for floatiig 1541907 62,938 (45,373)
Forward foreigi excharnge contracts
Ouration Nature of contract Notional value Asset Uiability
‘000 £000 £000
3months Sell USD Buy HKD HKD 2.247999 @51
3months. Sell USD Buy ILS 1LS 85,000 699 -
3months SellUSD Buy MYR MYR 150,000 151 -
3months Sell USD Buy SGD SGD 120.000 213 -
3months Sell EUR By GBP EUR 326,000 - @272
2months Sell GBP Buy ZAR USD 1,604 - @
3months Sell USD Buy GBP GBP 269.139 . (2127)
2months Sell GBP Buy USD USD 7.399 58 -
3months Sell ZAR Buy GBP GBP 49,277 2277 -
3,404 (5.852)
otal derivatives 66,342 (51,225)

12¢ Collateral amounts given/received
The foliowing collateral balances at fair value were held at the end of the year, relating to amounts given/received against
unrealised losses/gains respectively on derivative financial instruments shown in note 12b.

Derivative held Form of eollateral Given Received
£'000 £'000
Interest rate swaps Cash 7286 114
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12d Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets at fair value through net contribution to funds

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Totat
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 December 2021
Equities 532659 - - 532659
Govenment and other bonds 361.373 - - 361373
infrastructure - - 145068 145068
Multi-asset credit 492,221 - 215894 708,115
Inflation opportumities portfofio - - 305.367 305,367
Real estate and ground rent - - 101839 101839
Direct lending - - 337437 337,437
1,386,253 - 1,105,605 2,491,858
Derivative financial instruiments - 66342 - 66,342
1,386,253 66,342 1105605 _ 2.558.200
At 31 December 2020
Equities 432.267 - - 432,267
Government and other bonds 462082 . - 462,082
Infrastructire - - 145,595 145595
Multi-asset credit 371604 - 284.852 656,456
tnflation opportunities portfotio - - 250,552 250,552
Real estate and ground rent. - - 118770 118770
Direct lending - - 274815 274815
1,265,953 - 1,074,584 2,340,537
Derivative financial instruiments - 14113 - 14,113
1,265,953 14,113 1,074,584 2,354,650
Financial liabilities at fair value through net contribution to funds
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€000 €000 €000 £000
At 31 December 2021
Derivative financial instriments - (51.225) - (51,225)
At 31 December 2020
Derivative financial i - (18.801) - (18,801)

Categorisation within the hierarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vatue
measurement of the relevant asset as follows:

Level 1 Valued using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.
Level 2 Valued by reference to valuation techniques using observable inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1.

Level3 Valued by reference to valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on observable market data.
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13 Investments in subsidiary undertakings
The parent company has the following direct interests in subsidiary undertakings, with associated cost of parent investment

as follows:

Name

Dental Protecton Lmited

The Dentat Protection Society
Limied

OPL Australia Py Limited

MPS Holdings Australia Pty
e

‘The Cogritve Consulting Group
Pty Limited

MP1 (London) Limited

MPS Penodical Payment Trusiee

Lxted
MPS (Hong Kong Services) Pte Ltd

MPS South Afnca (Pty) Lid
MPS Singapore Services) Pre Lid
PS Clawms Services Limited

MPSUW Limited

MOSUW South Afnca (Py)
Lirvied

MPSUW Ireland Limited
MPSCM Limited

Medical and Dental Defence
Services Limt

MPSIS Uvted

Interest’
" 100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Cost
(£'000)

1.307001

40

29050

" 1336801

Registered office address
32 London Bridge Street, SE1 950,
England 7

32 London Bridge Street, SE1 95G.

England
Level 26,181

Nature of business

Toprovide msight on dentat ssues vch
impact MPS

Dormant company

Melbourne, Vic 3000 Australia

Level 26, 181 Wiltiam Street.
Melbourne, Vic 3000 Austratia

dental members n Australia
Holding company

Level 26,181
Metbourne, Vic

32 London Bndge Street, SE1 95G.
England

32 London Bridge Street. SE1 95G,
€ngland

Units 1603-4, 16th Floor, Causeway
B2y Plaza 1, 4689 3

professionals i Austratia
Tomanage the investment portfolo
forMPs

Corporate Trustee

Toprovide adminstration, traming and
oversignt

Kong
Executive Cuty, Cor Cross Str and
Charmane Ave, President Ridge.
Randourg, Gauteng, 2194, South Africa

of MPS in Hong Kong

Topravide adminsstration, training and
oversight functions relating tomembers
of MPS in South Africa

ek Central 2
#05-01, Hansapoin: @CBP, Singapore
(486030) )
32 London Bridge Street. SE1 95G,
Engiand )

32 London Bridge Street, SE1 95G.
England

1t Fig

Toprovick trainingand
oversight functions relating tomembers.
of MPS i Singapore
Toprovide clams services for the
policies sold by MPSUW Limsted
Anapproved Lioyd's of London
Coverhoder, dstributing medical
malpractice msurance policies to
corporate healthcare providers.

Lioyd's of London

Ruver Park. 2 fir Street. Observatory.
Western Cape, 0000, South Afnca

25-28 North Wall, Dubtin 3, DO1H10¢,
Irelan

32 London Bdge Street, SE1 95G.
England

Covertaider, drstributing medrcal
malpractice insurance polcIEs to
corporate healthcare providers
Anappraved Lioyd's of London
Coverholder, distributing medical
maipractice nsurance policies to
corporate healthcare providers

A Corporate Member of Lioyd's of
London supporting the underwriting
‘activtres of the MPS Special Pwpose
Arrangement Lloyd's syndicate

I ppine. La
Roman, 651222, Tnivdad & Tobago

48 Dute Streat, Kingston €SO,
Kingston, Jamaica

Toprovid training and
‘oversight functions relating Lo memoers
ofMPS In Trivdad & Tobago

Toprowde adminsiration, trainng and
aversight functions relating Lo members
of MPS 1 Jamatca

* Parent and Group interest in ordinary shares and voting rights. No changes through the current year.

* Indirectly owned by MPS

Allof the subsidi:

s listed operate principally in their country of registration.
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14 Debtors

2021 2020 2021 2020
Group Group  Company  Company
£000 £000 £000 £000

Receivable within ane year
Membership debtors 18335 8879 18335
Other trade debtors 1043 309 520
Recoverable insurance claitns 4,595 9,522 5.208
Amoiints owed by subsidiary indertakings - 87,772 131235
Other debtors 2412 9,314 2392
Prepayiments 5582 5,856 5537
Corporation ta . . .
163.717
Receivable after one year -
Recoverable msirance clauns 20,729 31640 26,693 37962
" T20720 31,640 26,693 37962
Total debtors 55,682 63607 __ 148,345 201679

One of the toan balances within amounts owed by subsi

ary undertakings is interest bearing at a rate of LIBOR +3% (2020: LIBOR

+3%) and is subject to a fixed charge over the investments, interest, dividends and other income of the subsidiary as well as a
floating charge over the whole of that company’s undertakings. Such arrangements are repayable on demand.

All other amounts are non-interest bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand.

1S Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2021 2020 2021 2020
Group Grop  Company Company
£000 £000 £000 £000
Corporation tax - 8379 - -
Other taxes and social secumty 3,484 5.445 3331 5.261
Other creditors and accruals 49,083 47211 69,389 59.398
Deferced subscription mcoime 52.862 63631 52,862 63594
Amounts owed to subsiiary indertakings - - 886 1310
105,429 124666 126,468 129,563
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings from the Company are unsecured and repayable on demand.
16 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year
2021 2020 2021 2020
Group Group  Company Company
£000 £000 £000 £000
Other creditors and accrirals 669 548 669 548

The Medical Protectinn Socety Linited
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17  Provisions for liabilities
Reported  Reported

Deferred  negligence other Claims
tax claims. claims handling 1BNR Property Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Group
At 1 Janvary 2021 27722 559.804 65431 80083 8957 550 742547
Movements in the Staternent of
Comprehensive income:
- Reported negligence claims - 190,649 - 23.480 (523) - 213606
- Reported other clains - - 5,490 49,856 - - 55.346
- Deferred taxation 28.290 - - - - - 28,290
- Onerous lease - - - - - 16,000 16000
- Finance cost (unwinding of - 8100 1000 - - - 9.100
discount)
Paid - (148393 (25.535) (57.340) - - (231.268)
At 31 December 2021 56,012 610,160 46,386 96,079 8,434 16,550 833,621
The isi reported negli claims is the future settiement values for damages and legal costs in

respect of all negligence claims notified by 31 December.

The provision for reported other claims is the estimated discounted future settlement value of legal costs relating to these other
claims, notified by 31 December.

The provision for claims handling is the estimated cost of managing all reported claims to conclusion.

Finance costs reflect the unwinding of discount in the provision. The principat financial assumption used in the calculation of the
finance cost is that the rate used to unwind the discount is 2.9% (2020: 4.0%) per annum.

MPS uses its internal staff to determine accurate estimates for individual claims, based on past experience and factors relevant to
each claim. In addition, MPS uses the experience of its internal actuarial team, to use the internal individual claim estimates, and
membership data, to arrive at a statistical reserve for the likely cost of all reported claims.

The principal financial assumptions used in the calcutation of the claims provision are that average claims inflation will be 5.6%
(2020: 6.5%) per annum over the period to payment where claims inflation assumptions are estimated and applied by territory
by the internal actuarial team, having been approved by the Asset and Liability Committee. Investment return, used to discount
future claims payments back to the balance sheet date, will be the UK risk-free rate published by the European Insurance and
Occupational Pensions Authority (“EIOPA") as at the year end, plus 2.9% (2020: 2.9%) for all territories other than South Africa.
The South Africa risk-free rate published by EIOPA plus -1.2% is used (2020: -0.6%). The average period to payment is estimated
as 2.3 years (2020: 2.3 years). The payment delay is estimated by territory by the internal actuarial team.

The timing of individual claim payments is uncertain, as they are the subject of litigation.

There are no amounts charged in the year for deferred tax relating to items of other comprehensive income (2020: £nil).
Property provisions relate wholly to leasehold property. The opening balance relates to provision for dilapidations, being the
estimated cost for restoring leasehold property assets back to their original condition. The charge for the current year covers

future commitments, until the end of the lease, for the currently vacant proportion of a leased property space. This cost has been
recognised within Administration expenses within the C: of Compy Income.
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Reported
negligence  Reparted other
claims claims  Claimshandling  Dilapidations Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Company
At 1 January 2021 560,438 65431 80003 550 706.422
Moveinents.in the Staternent of
Comprehensive Incorne:
- Reported negligence claiins 200916 - 23461 - 224,377
- Reported other claims - 5.490 49,856 - 55346
- Onerous lease - - - 16000 16000
- Finance cost (unwinding of discount) 8100 1,000 - - 9100
Paid (159.294) (25.535) (57.315) - (242.144)
At 31 December 2021 610,160 46,386 96,005 16,500 769,101
18 Deferred tax
Deferred tax provided at 19% (2020: 19%) in the financial statements is set out below:
2021 2020 2021 2020
Group Group Company Company
fixed asset equity i 56,012 27722 - -

19 Commitments
MPS has guaranteed that its subsidiaries have adequate resources to meet their liabilities as they fall due.

Capital commitments are disclosed in note 11. For operating. i the fu ini P ing lease payments for
the Group and Company under ordinarily non-canceflable commitments are as follows:

2021 2020 2021 2020
Group Group  Company Company
£000 £000 £000 £000
Operating lease annuat commitments

Land aund buiildings:
Within one year 2472 2,581 2,376 2487
Between one and five years. 9,290 9517 9,025 9.148
Over five years 10,638 12878 10,638 12878
22.400 24976 22,039 24,513

Office equiprnent:
Within one year 73 55 73 55
Betweenone and five years. - 18 - 18
73 73 73 73
‘The Medicat Protection Society Lintited | Annual inanci 2021
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20 Financial assets and liabilities

2021 2020 2021 2020
Group Group Company Company
£000 £000 £000 £000
at fair value through ibution to funds
- Listed investinents 1,386,253 1.265.953 - -
- Unlisted mvestments 1,105,605 1.074,584 - -
- Interest rate swaps 62,938 2621 - -
- Forward foreign exchange contracts 3,404 11.492 - -

2,558,200 2,354,650 - -

amortised cost

- its di iary i - - 87772 131.235
- Cash held withn fixed asset investments 130,745 221196 - -
- Bank deposit accoimts 206,508 178877 19,986 24570
- Cashat bank andin hand 103,561 28,295 21,991 27.451
- Membership debtors 8879 18335 8,879 18335
- Other trade debtors 403 1033 309 920
- Other debtars 9,325 2407 9,314 2392
- Recoverable insirance claims 29,588 36.236 36,215 43.260
489,029 486379 _ 184466 248163
Financial tiabilities at fair g
- Interest rate swaps. 45,373) (12.706) - -
- Forward foreign exchaige contracts (5.852) (6.095) - -
(51,225) (18.801) - -
Finoncial liabitities measured at amartised cost
- Atnounts owed to sibsidiary undertakings - - (886) (1310)
~ Other creditors (13.056) (18.856) (10,013) (17.506)
- Accruals 54897y (36644) __ (53023 (31995
(67753 __ (55.500) (63.922) (50.811)

The Group purchases forward foreign currency contracts to hedge specific currency exposure. The assets and liabilities are held
at fair value through net contribution to funds at the balance sheet date and are determined using quoted prices. Further details
on the valuation of derivatives are provided in note 4(j).
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21 Financiatrisk management

The Group has a centratised treasury function which manages
the investment strategy, liquidity and other financial risks in
accordance with the Council approved Treasury Policy. The
objective of the policy and controls that are established is to
mitigate the risk of an adverse impact on the performance of
the Group as a result of its exposure to financial risks arising
from the Group's operations. It is the Group's policy not to
engage in speculative trading of financial instruments.

The Council retains ultimate responsibility for treasury activity
and is involved in key decision making. The Asset and Liability
Committee is ished to provid d ight
to treasury activity within delegated authority limits and
formally reports to the Council.

Market risk

llected in any one year are d until such
time as they may be needed to pay the costs arising from the
year in which the subscriptions were received. The greater the
investment return that we try to achieve from these invested
assets, the greater the fluctuations in the value of those assets,
and thus, the greater the risk that MPS will see a fall in the
value of its assets. Such volatility in the value of MPS's assets
is, when asset values fall, damaging to the strength of the
balance sheet, and significant volatility in investment returns
makes it more difficult to plan for the longer-term.

MPS has historically adopted a prudent investment strategy
that carefully identifies and sets limits on the levels of risk
acceptableinits portfolio, thereby reducing the likely volatility
of returns. These limits necessarily restrain the potential returns
achievable from the portfolio but help safeguard against

h

significant deterioration in thy gth of the bx
External professional advice is regularly sought, and investment
per is subject to detailed review in conjuncti

with advisers, Wherever practical, risks arising from currency
fluctuation and investment liquidity are minimised.

The risk of asset value volatility is addressed in a number of
ways. Firstly, a significant portion of assets is held in bonds.

and short-term money market funds, which generally have a
lower leve! of volatility. Secondly, those assets held primarily to
achieve an investment return are invested in a diverse portfolio.
The equity etement of these assets is held in a number of
different portfolios, each investing in different geographic

value and coupon amount. Further mitigation is provided by the
ability to reduce the tax charge as a result of indexation.

The impact on MPSs liabilities is more complicated. The mamn
influences on the cost of large claims, particularly in the UK, are
those elements that reflect compensation for future costs or
losses; these are mainly loss of earnings and the cost of future
care. An estimate of the lump sum required to provide for these
future costs is determined by reference to the personal injury
discount rate. The discount rate might be expected to change
with changinginterest rate expectations, but, as noted in the
Reserving Risk section page 78. in the UK it is in fact fixed, by
the Lord Chancetior.

MPS's response to the risk inherent in our lial s is firstly to
ensure that we have an appropriate investment make-up to
closely match the liabilities and secondly to ensure that we
have sufficient assets to allow a margin in case of unexpected
changes in interest and inflation rates. As the proportion of
bonds in the portfolio is reduced under the revised strategy,
50 too are exposures to interest rate and inflation movements,
which could increase the risk that the asset portfolio does

not match the i isks arising from our
liabilities. A derivative swap programme is in place to ensure
that the overall portfolio maintains an appropriate level of
interest rate and inflation expectation exposure matching for
the associated liability risks.

Credit risks

This is the risk that a third party, who owes money to MPS,
will fail to pay. MPS has little risk frorn a failure by members
to pay subscriptions, because if payments are not made, the
non-paying members will not be entitled to the benefits of
membership (such as advice or assistance with claims). MPS's
main credit risk arises from a failure of our insurers, a failure

of a bank with which we hold deposits, or a faiture of some of
the counterparties involved in certain investments, including
defaults within the direct lending portfolio and derivative
financial instruments that form part of the investment portfolio.

MPS has a stated policy on the acceptable risk profile for its.
insurers, This policy states the requirement to spread the

risk across a number of insurers and dictates the acceptable
financial security rating for insurers. Bank credit ratings are
reviewed before d i made wil ific instituti

and deposits d across a number of ties to

areas; and the equities are augf by other king
assets which help to reduce volatility further, because returns.
from these assets are less than perfectly correlated with the
returns from equities.

Interest rate/inflation risk

MPS currently holds a significant, though reducing. portion of
its invested assets in bonds. An increase in interest rates will
cause a fall in the price (value) of bonds, as bond prices move
inversely to changes in interest rates.

Interest rate exposure for bond assets has historically been
mitigated firstly by having a broad range of bond holdings, with
different sensitivities to interest rate rm . and secondly

gainst bank failure. MPS does not review the credit risk
of counterparties in derivative financial instruments, but instead
agrees parameters with its investment managers as to what.
security rating is acceptable for such counterparties. However,
MP$ does receive collateral on revalued derivative positions,
when appropriate. For the direct lending fund, the main mitigant
against default risk is that the fund aims to be, and is. heavily
weighted to senior secured debt, and as such direct lending
benefits from better recovery rates than bond investors.

During the current year, MPS has maintained its position in
credit funds in order to achieve modest increases to contractual
returns and reduce market risk. These portfolios are held with

by holding a predominance of index-linked bonds. where
increasing inflation is allowed for in the rebasing of the capital

credit fund managers. Credit risk is managed by
careful portfolio selection and diversification across managers.
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21 Financial risk management (continued)
Foreign currency risk

MPS hotds assets to meet the costs of reported claims and
potential future requests for assistance. Given that MPS

supports members in several different countries, these casts
may fall due in a number of different currencies. If the assets
are not held in the same currency as the costs, then there is

a risk that movement in exchange rates will alter the relative

value of the assets to the costs.

MPS's strategy is to minimise currency mismatches between
assets and potential future costs. This is achieved by either
holding assets in the same currency, and to the same value, as

The likelihood that our estimates for reported claims and
unreported potential claims vary from the eventual payments
required diminishes with the increasing size of the portfolio of
risk. The geographical diversity of the portfolio also helps to
reduce the overall variation between our estimates and the
eventual payments required. A larger, more diversified portfolio
of riskis less likely to be affected overall by a change that
affects a subset of that portfolio.

MPS maintains a large, geographically diverse portfolio of
risk and this is a key step in helping to reduce the variation of
outcome around the expected mean.

the expected costs, or through a currency hedging pi
designed to protect against currency mismatches.

Liquidity risk

This is the risk that MPS may have insufficient liquid assets
available to meet payments when they fall due. This could
either resultinan inal
need to realise anilliqui
could be costty.

In managing liquidity risk, MPS needs to balance the ability to

gain aninvestment return on assets and the ability to have

Reserving risk
MPS provides indemnity to members for the costs and

damages associated with clinical negligence claims and the
costs associated with other claims. At any time there are, as.

a result of past adverse incidents, claims that have already
been reported and claims that have not yet been reported

(unreported potentiat claims). Subject to discretion, MPS will be

responsible for all of these claims.

For us to be responsible for paying these claims, we need to be
able to assess their value and ensure that MPS has sufficient
assets (reserves) to meet the expected total costs. The value
of these claims is estimated by MPS and the reserving risk is
that the eventual payments required to meet the claims may

exceed the sums estimated.

The uncertainty around estimating the value of all claims is

greater for unreported potential claims than for those that
have been reported. For unreported potential claims, the

to meet a required payment or the
id investment before maturity, which

ies as they fall due. MPS operates

a sophisticated system through major clearing banks to ensure
that an appropriate level of funds is available on a daily basis
when required, but that these are invested in pacled money
market and liquidity funds at other times. In addition, these cash
funds are supplemented by substantial holdings in liquid assets.

A further step rel ing the accuracy of the expected
outcome in the first place and this relies heavily on the
accuracy of data used and the quality of anatysis in determining
the expected outcome. At MPS, we use the skill of our internal
staff to determine accurate estimates for individual claims and
ensure that levels of skill are maintained by supporting ongoing
training initiatives.

We also have many checks and balances in our internal
systems to allow regular review and monitoring of these
estimates to help ensure a high degree of accuracy and
consistency. MPS's internal actuarial team use the internal
individual claim esti d relevant ip data to
advise on an appropriate statistical reserve for the fikely cost of
all reported claims, and estimates of the potential future costs
of unreported requests for assistance (see aote 22).

Underwriting risk

MPS charges a subscription based, in part, on the expected
volume and value of claims and cases that may arise against
those members paying the subscription. There is a risk that
the volume or value of claims and cases brought against those
members will d the i i ithin the
subscriptions, with the result that MPS will not have collected
sufficient subscription income.

Again, the skill of staff and advisers is important, as 15 the
quality of internal systems. In addition. MPS carefully reviews
all ions for ip and makes an on
those risks that it is willing to accept. MPS also runs an internal
programme to identify individual members who appear to
represent a higher than normal risk and tries to work with them
to reduce their risk. In a limited number of cases, members

are not accepted into, or do not continue in membership, as
we consider their isks to be too high. We continue to invest
inimproving and developing the systems. resources and
processes involved in the management of member risk, and we
purchase insurance to reduce the impact of the highest value

22 Funds available for members

MPS seeks to hold a long-term surplus which is available to
support requests for assistance which may arise in the future
from both current and past members. The principal reason
that this surplusis held is to meet the cost of potential claims
against members for incidents that have already occurred,
but which have not been notified to MPS prior to the year
end. The cost of these potential claims is not recognised as a
liability until MPS exercises its discretion to assist. However,
the Council needs to take these potential future costs into
careful consideration when managing the financial position of
the Company.

MPS estimates the expected cost of future requests for
assistance arising from incidents already incurred by reference
to past experience and projected trends of the potential
number and magnitude of these requests. As discretionary
indemnity is provided on an occurrence year basis and the
period for actual claims to be made can be many years, the
estimated projections require financial modelling over long
emergence periods.

The Council engages its internal actuaries to help model and
determine likely levels of future claims in accordance with
relevant actuarial guidance. The work performed is peer-
reviewed by an external actuarial consultancy for material
segments of business. The level of future claims is, however,
an estimate, and given the long-term nature of these potential
requests, the actual costs of assisting with those matters,
where assistance is granted, could vary considerably, MPS
retains the absolute right not to assist but seeks to actin the
interests of members as a whole when deciding to accept
tiability for claims emerging, and for the purposes of this
disclosure has modelled the acceptance of requests at levels
projected in line with prior years.

As at 31 December 2021, the Council's estimate of this potential
future cost, if it agrees to assist, was £870m (2020: £978m).

These potential donot i Gability,

or otherwise, and are therefore not recognised in the balance
sheet, because recognition of the liability is subject to MPS
exercising its discretion to assist, or not, (see accounting policy
note 4(K) for further details). These potential requests may,

to the extent to which the Council exercises that discretion
toindemnify, become an MPS liability over time, under the

occurrence basis of indemnity which MPS provides to members.

23 Obligations of Members
MPS has the right to call each year for additionat funds from its
members up to an amount equal to the annual subscription.

24 Guarantee
MPS is limited by guarantee not exceeding £1 per member.

25 Related party transactions

The parent company has taken advantage of the exemption
in$33.1A of FRS 102 from disclosing transactions with wholly
owned subsidiaries of The Medical Protection Society Limited.

As noted in the Report of the Council on page 46, ten (2020:
nine) Non-Executive members of the Council have personal

ip of MPS, which is a basis consistent
with that of other members.

MPS considers the Council and the Executive Committee
together to be its Key Management Personnet. The Executive
Committee includes the Executive members of Council (as
detailed on page 39), plus other executive Directors of MPS
that are not members of Council. This combined Group has
aggregate remuneration of £4.0m (2020: £3.7m).

uncertainties include the number and severity of claims arising,  claims made against our members,
how longitis tikely to take from the date of an adverse incident

to the reporting of a claim, and how many of these may

become large claims. The uncertainties for the reported claims

are alittle narrower, but still considerable.

In addition to the variation inherent in the claims, there are also
external factors — mainly changes in legislation - which can
have a profound impact on claim estimates.
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